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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Group. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive and there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
IRBRES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, it is
my pleasure to present to you the annual report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

Miricor was successfully listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on
10 January 2017 (the “Listing”) by way of placing (the “Placing”),
which marked the beginning of the Group next stage of growth. The
Group is in a stronger financial position with the net proceeds from
the Listing for its use and has also enhanced its brand image and
obtained a wider public recognition. It is more competitive and boasts
promising development potential in the medical aesthetic services
industry.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the revenue of the Group
increased by HK$16.7 million, or 20.0%, from approximately HK$83.4
million to approximately HK$100.1 million. The increase was primarily
attributable to the successful launch of our member referral scheme
and introduction of two new facial & body treatments. The Group is in
a healthy financial position with cash and cash equivalents amounting
to HK$135.4 million as at 31 March 2017.

With the medical aesthetic service industry characterised by rapid
technological advancements, the Group kept abreast of the latest
technologies during the year under review. Treatment devices
employing prevailing technologies are used by the Group in the broad
range of treatment procedures it offers. The business is constantly
offering up-to-date treatments and products.

Going forward FY2017/18 will be a year full of opportunities. The
Group remains confident about the prospect of the medical aesthetic
services industry. Thanks to the growing consumer acceptance and
affordability of medical aesthetic services, the demands for medical
aesthetic services are increasing in Hong Kong and outpacing the
traditional beauty services sector which is believed to benefit the
Group.

6  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2017

BAR

AAERERARRNESE ([EF2])RAR
EARARRAREMNBRAR(ABIAEEDEHE
201743 A 31 HILFENFERE -

SR 2017F1 A1I0BXN N EBEHERS
FTEMRARIAIZER LT (ARFAEE ([ AR%
) (L) BFEREERT —EIE R R
BFE - AEE B ATERF A A EBAM LA
SRBEFEMAFEERNMBAR  WER
R MBF S MBS EZMNARRAY - mAE
BEXARBTEPEARF IREAISELT
MEBRET -

HZE2017F3ASTHILEFE - AEBEAUEA
M%)83.4 HEE L N16.7 2B 15 20.0%
ZH1001BEA T - BELMNHERRKI
LS EHBTE - Yol A\ME2FBBRT
BRI - AREEMBAMRRERE - N2017F3 A
318 - BekREFEWR1BLEEET -

ERESEXRRGITERMEBERAEOSE
AEBERN O ESEZ RN - AEE(ER
FAERITRMMHEERER L RERAREE
LR o NEE B SRR E

on °

BA201718FE B RIS REN —F o
REBHESEARBITENTSTMED °
EREEEHBESEXAMBHNEIRENEE
Be NI BFTIEN - BEMBEXARBEHKIE
g WEBAERERARBITENERR
X BEEgHAEEEFR -



CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
IRBRES

Moreover, alive to the rapid development of the medical aesthetic
services industry, we will continue to keep pace with technological
development and innovation to ensure we are prepared for both
opportunities and challenges that the growing industry will bring. We
will also conduct market research on prevailing treatment
technologies and skin care products to make sure they are able to
satisfy customers’ needs at all times.

We will strive hard for market penetration as well as to broaden our
treatment services and product offerings for the purpose of enhancing
our market influence. The Group will aim for excellence and continue
to improve on professionalism and innovation as it advances into a
new era.

Acknowledgements

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our shareholders and our
business partners, suppliers and customers for their continuous
support to the Group. My heartfelt appreciation also goes to our
management and professional colleagues for their dedication and
valuable contribution to the Group in the past year.

Lai Ka Yee Gigi
Chairlady & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Business Review

Miricor is a provider of medical aesthetic services in Hong Kong. It
operates two medical aesthetic centres branded “CosMax” at prime
locations in Causeway Bay and Central District, providing customers
a broad range of non-surgical medical aesthetic services and skin
care products that can help improve their complexion and overall
physical appearance. We tailor solutions for customers specific to
their individual needs, with treatments performed by doctors and
trained therapists. Our Group’s non-surgical medical aesthetic
services include energy-based procedures, injection procedures and
other treatments.

As at 31 March 2017, our Group had 71 treatment devices (including
devices used for training purpose) for performing various treatment
procedures involving the use of laser, radiofrequency, ultrasound and
iontophoresis. All treatment devices deployed by our Group have
been critically evaluated and assessed by our doctors with relevant
clinical knowledge and experience to ensure that they are safe and
effective in producing the desired results for customers. The business
is constantly offering up-to-date treatments and products. During the
year under review, new technologies such as PicoSure and SculpSure
were imported from the United States, featuring innovative FDA-
approved aesthetic laser that can refine both skin and body shape. In
addition, as the exclusive retailer for Skin Management System in
Hong Kong, Macau and China, we incorporate products with
rejuvenating power that helps to regain youthful and healthy skin for
clients with skin concerns.

Our Group also offers more than 50 different skin care products,
including those under our own brands “CosMax” and “Cospeutic”
and products of other brands. The types of products available to
customers include cleanser, toner, moisturiser, eye care products,
and ultraviolet (UV) protection products, that can help improve the
skin conditions of customers and enhance treatment results.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Business Review (Continued)

In order to seize the opportunity created by increasing customer
demands at our existing centres, we have expanded the operation
scale of our Causeway Bay centre by leasing an additional floor of
space in the same building aiming to facilitate the continuous growth
of our business. Nevertheless, we experienced a hold up in opening
of our new medical aesthetic centre in Kowloon. In March 2017, we
decided to terminate the renovation work on the leased premises for
our planned new medical aesthetic centre in Kowloon and
surrendered the property back to the landlord, shortly after we have
been informed that there would be better leasing space available in
another large scale shopping complex located in the most popular
area in Tsim Sha Tsui early next year. We consider the location of the
shopping complex that we plan to switch to is a more ideal choice,
particularly in terms of potential customer traffic, which will be critical
to our long term business growth. Our Directors are confident that,
notwithstanding the fact that we recognised a financial loss of
approximately HK$2.9 million as result of this change in plan, our
Group’s future business growth will be still kept on the right track.

A year-over-year analysis of key clients are set out below:
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% change
2017 2016 EEsd )
Number of active clients (Note a)  SERE S A (T a) 5,156 4,848 6.4
Number of repeat clients (Note b)  BIZEE A E (M b) 3,454 3,334 3.6
Proportion of repeat clients SRR ERE PR EGE
amongst active clients 67% 69%
Number of new clients (Note ¢) ~ ¥1& = AB(Miztc) 1,702 1,514 12.4
Number of referred clients HAKPE A 912 770 18.4
Referral rate LER A 54% 51%
Notes: B3
a. Clients who have made at least one purchase of services or products, or received  a. RIEEMBFEELBE —ARBIERXELE
at least one treatment session in the relevant financial year. R—RERNEPS o
b. Clients who (i) have made at least one purchase of services or products or  b. AR ﬁﬁﬁﬁlif‘ﬁﬁ() DEE - RRBRERRE
received at least one treatment session in the relevant financial year; and (i) have DS —IRER ) Ri)BEEHARKMIREE RS
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C. Clients who for the first time have made at least one purchase of services or
products in the relevant financial year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review

Revenue

Our revenue is mainly derived from the provision of medical aesthetic
services, which include treatment services, consultation services, as
well as the prescription and dispensing of medical products. In
addition, we sell skin care products to our clients.

Our Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$100.1 million
for the year ended 31 March 2017, representing an increase of
approximately HK$16.7 million or 20.0% as compared with HK$83.4
million for the year ended 31 March 2016. The increase was primarily
attributable to the successful launch of our member referral scheme
and introduction of two new facial & body treatments.

Set forth below is a breakdown of our total revenue during the years
ended 31 March 2017 and 2016:
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For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIALEE

2017 2016

HK$’000 % HK$’000 %

THET Aotk FAT AL

Treatment services VEHW% 90,074 90.0 74,081 88.9

Medical consultation services SRR RRTS 677 0.7 613 0.7

Prescription and dispensing of EJ,TEEDDJ;%E I e 26

medical products 2,178 2.1 2,797 3.4

Skin care products EBEEMm 4,681 4.7 3,842 4.6
Revenue recognised from TR B AR E A AN E

unutilised prepaid packages 127 Wz 2,494 2.5 2,019 2.4

Total revenue Wrzh 4 %E 100,104 100.0 83,352 100.0

(i) Revenue from treatment services
During the year ended 31 March 2017, most of our revenue
was derived from treatment services. Revenue from treatment
services amounted to HK$90.1 million for the year ended 31
March 2017 and HK$74.1 million for the year ended 31 March
2016, representing 90.0% and 88.9% of our total revenue,
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)
Revenue (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue from consultation services

First-time clients are required to attend medical consultation
with our doctors, during which our doctors will perform
examination as well as assess and/or make a diagnosis on the
client’s skin conditions and recommend suitable treatment
services accordingly based on their specific conditions, needs
and concerns. After the first visit, follow up consultation
sessions will also be provided when appropriate to keep track
of clients’ conditions.

Revenue from consultation services amounted to HK$0.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2017 and HK$0.6 million
for the year ended 31 March 2016, representing 0.7% and
0.7% of our total revenue, respectively.

Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical
products

Based on clients’ skin conditions, their specific needs and
requirements, our doctors may prescribe medication and/or
recommend certain skin care products which are dispensed at
our medical aesthetic centres.

Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical products
amounted to HK$2.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2017
and HK$2.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2016,
representing 2.1% and 3.4% of our total revenue, respectively.

Revenue from sale of skin care products

Skin care products include cleanser, toner, serum, moisturiser,
eye care products, ultraviolet (UV) protection products and
masks. We offer two lines of private label skin care products,
namely “CosMax” and “Cospeutic”, that treat a range of skin
conditions. To provide more choices and meet individual needs
of clients, we also sell several other selected brands of skin care
products provided by third party manufacturers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

(iv) Revenue from sale of skin care products (Continued)
Revenue from sale of skin care products amounted to HK$4.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2017 and HK$3.8 million
for the year ended 31 March 2016, representing 4.7% and
4.6% of our total revenue, respectively. The increase of
approximately HK$0.9 million, or 23.7%, was primarily due to
the launch of the Skin Management System products which our
Group has exclusive selling rights in Hong Kong, Macau and
China.

(v) Revenue recognised from unutilised prepaid packages
Prepaid packages are offered to clients in connection with our
treatments. When designing the number of treatment sessions
in a prepaid package, we take into account, among other
things, our doctors’ assessment and also the protocols
recommended by the suppliers of treatment devices in respect
of the number of optimal sessions which should be taken to
achieve the desired results.

Revenue recognised from unutilised prepaid package amounted
to HK$2.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 and
HK$2.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2016, representing
only 2.5% and 2.4% of our total revenue, respectively.

Other income

Other income accounted for approximately HK$1.1 million and
HK$0.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016,
representing 1.1% and 0.4% of the total revenue for the respective
year. The increment was mainly arose from insurance compensation
for the year ended 31 March 2017 representing the amount received
during the year in respect of a workplace accident that happened in
2012 involving injury suffered by an employee at work. All claim from
this employee were fully settled and the amount received from the
insurance company under our labour insurance plan represented full
compensation of the medical expenses and the employee’s salaries
for the period during which she was not able to work.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)

Cost of inventories and consumables

Cost of inventories and consumables amounted to approximately
HK$9.8 million and HK$8.1 million for the years ended 31 March
2017 and 20186, representing 9.8% and 9.7% of the total revenue,
respectively.

Staff costs

Staff costs increased by approximately HK$9.9 million, or 33.7%,
from approximately HK$29.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2016 to approximately HK$39.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2017. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in
commissions paid to doctors and front-line staff whose incentive
scheme is tied to various key performance indicators such as the
number of packages sold or number of treatments conducted. As a
result of increase in sales of packages and increase in total revenue,
commissions payable to doctors and front-line staff increased for the
year ended 31 March 2017. The increase in staff costs was also
attributable to the increase in headcount to 82 employees as at 31
March 2017 (2016: 66).

Property rentals and related expenses

Property rentals and related expenses increased by approximately
HK$0.5 million, or 5.3%, from approximately HK$9.4 million for the
year ended 31 March 2016 to HK$9.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2017. The increase was primarily due to additional office rental
expenses and other related costs such as management fee and
government rates, etc.

Depreciation

Depreciation expenses amounted to approximately HK$6.2 million
and HK$6.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016,
representing 6.2% and 7.4% of total revenue for the respective years.

Other expenses

Other expenses increased by approximately HK$23.7 million, or
272%, from approximately HK$8.7 million for the year ended 31
March 2016 to approximately HK$32.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2017. The increase was primarily attributable to the recognition
of the listing expenses of approximately HK$14.9 million in connection
with the Listing and the forfeiture of rental-related deposits of
approximately HK$2.9 million as a result of surrendering the leased
premises to the landlord as explained in the relevant paragraph under
“Business Review” in this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)

Income tax expense

Income tax expense was approximately HK$3.5 million for the year
ended 31 March 2017 and HK$3.5 million for the year ended 31
March 2016. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
incurred one-off listing expenses which are not deductible for taxation
purpose.

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$0.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2017, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$18.4 million, or 99.5%, as compared
with the year ended 31 March 2016. The decrease was mainly due to
the recognition of the listing expenses of approximately HK$14.9

B 7% ol (&)

FrieBimx
HZE2017F3AALFEREE2016F3
A31BLEFENMEHAZDNAORISEE
BT RISBEEAEIT c HE2017FI A3 HIE
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A RYER ISR o
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RN AZ01IEEET REIE20164 3
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million in connection with the Listing and the forfeiture of rental-related  FHEFIZ S 42.9 B BB T ©
deposits of approximately HK$2.9 million.
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FH&T
Profit for the year and VAN/NETE ¥ = DN Y el
total comprehensive income FERM
for the year attributable to owners REEZEmEA
of the Company 4B 59 18,488
Adjustments for one-off expenses: LRBH— RS
Listing expenses WX 14,926 -
Forfeited deposits WoR MR e 2,950 -
Adjusted profit for the year KRB AR F 17,935 18,488

Excluding the one-off listing expenses and the forfeited rental-related
deposits, profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2017 would have been approximately HK$17.9
million, representing a slight decrease of approximately 3.2% as
compared with the year ended 31 March 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Dividends

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: interim dividend of
HK$10,600,000).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Financial Resources

We continue to maintain a strong financial position with cash and
cash equivalents of HK$135.4 million as at 31 March 2017. During
the year ended 31 March 2017, we received net proceeds from
Placing of approximately HK$55.6 million. Our working capital,
represented by net current assets was HK$68.7 million. Based on our
steady cash inflows from operations, coupled with sufficient cash and
bank balances, we have adequate liquidity and financial resources to
meet our working capital requirements and to fund our budgeted
expansion plans in the next financial year.

As at 31 March 2017, all of our cash and bank balances was
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar.

Cash Flow Analysis

The table below sets forth the information as extracted from the
consolidated statement of cash flow of our Group for the years ended
31 March 2017 and 2016:

f% B
EECWIEEREE2017FE3A3 HILSF
£k T 1] & B (20164 & B f& B -
10,600,000/ 7T) °

nENE e LIFEEIR

MBEEIR

B EERFEINFBARR  2017F3 A
ITAMBRE KA SEEYMAI1BIEEST -
HZE2017F3ABLEFE BMEEAA
P2 & UENA) 55.6 B BB TTRFTS RUIEFE o
ZMMEEES(ARBEEFHE) /68TH
BET BRERMELEEESHEBTERESR
A EREANE S RRITES  BMAER
HNTRBESRMBER  UWENEEESE
KRR T —HBRFERNBEERTE -

R2017F3A31 8 B2 IR MIETT
ESHRABITLETE ©

BEREDIT
TREIEEE B RNEB R ZE 2017 F %2016
FI3ASTHIFENGARERERNER

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 % change
FET FHET Ebzlrd-$)
Net cash flows from KRB FTE LR
operating activities ReneFHE 43,302 9,293 365.9
Net cash flows used in RERBFRARESREFE
investing activities (8,897) 2,179 308.3
Net cash flows from/(used in) MEESTEEN, (FTA) 71,788 (10,600) N/A
financing activities WemEHE T
Net increase/(decrease) in RERREEEY 106,193 (3,486) N/A
cash and cash equivalents a0, CRi ) B 58 T E A
Cash and cash equivalents at FURMIREEFEEY
beginning of the year 29,251 32,737 (10.7)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRIREFIREEED
the end of the year 135,444 29,251 363.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

Cash Flow Analysis (Continued)

Our cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year were
approximately HK$135.4 million as at 31 March 2017, as compared
to approximately HK$29.3 million as at 31 March 2016, the increase
was due to the net proceeds received from the Placing.

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

For the year ended 31 March 2017, our net cash flows from operating
activities was HK$43.3 million, which was primarily attributable to
settlements of HK$24.5 million from related parties and increase in
receipts from sales of treatment packages.

Net Cash Flows Used In Investing Activities

For the year ended 31 March 2017, our net cash flows used in
investing activities was HK$8.9 million, which was primarily
attributable to increase in purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment.

Net Cash Flows from/(Used In) Financing Activities

For the year ended 31 March 2017, our net cash flows from financing
activities was HK$71.8 million, resulted from the net of cash proceeds
of HK$80 million received from the Placing and the share issue
expenses of HK$8.2 million.

Commitments

The contractual commitments of our Group were primarily related to
the leases of our office premises, medical aesthetic centres, car park
space and certain office equipment. As at 31 March 2017, our
Group’s operating lease commitments amounted to approximately
HK$15.8 million (2016: approximately HK$14.9 million).

As at 31 March 2017, our Group had capital commitments in respect
of the acquisition of items of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$0.4 million (2016: Nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment
During the year, the Group acquired items of plant and equipment
amounting to HK$6.6 million (2016: HK$2.2 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Indebtedness

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings

As at 31 March 2017, our Group had no outstanding interest-bearing
bank borrowings (2016: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As at 31 March 2017, our Group had no significant contingent
liabilities and guarantees (2016: Nil).

Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2017, there was no charge on the assets of our
Group except for the time deposits of HK$3.3 million (2016: HK$3.4
million) pledged for banking facilities as security for credit card
instalments programme.

Gearing Ratio
As at 31 March 2017, our Group had no interest-bearing borrowings
(2016: Nil).

Foreign Currency Risk

Our Group carries out its business in Hong Kong and most of its
transactions are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar. Our Group did
not experience any material impact or difficulties in liquidity on its
operations resulting from the fluctuation in exchange rate, and no
hedging transaction or forward contract arrangement was made by
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2017.

Interest Rate Risk

Our Group has no significant interest rate risk. Our Group currently
does not have any specific policies in place to manage interest rate
risk and has not entered into any interest rate swap transactions to
mitigate interest rate risk, but will closely monitor related risk in the
future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Indebtedness (Continued)

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no significant investments
held by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2017, nor
were there any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the reporting period. Save as
disclosed in this report, there is no plan authorised by the Board for
other material investments or additions of capital assets as at the
date of this report.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2017, our Group has a total of 82 employees (2016:
66). Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration, of our Group were
approximately HK$39.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2017
(2016: approximately HK$29.4 million). Remuneration is determined
with reference to factors such as comparable market salaries and
work performance, time commitment and responsibilities of each
individual. Employees are provided with relevant in-house and/or
external training from time to time. In addition to a basic salary, year-
end bonuses are offered to employees who performed outstandingly
to attract and retain eligible employees to contribute to our Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR D
Use of Proceeds Fri8=kIa A%

The net proceeds from the Placing were approximately HK$55.6  AREFR{S 2 PR IE R84 A 55.6 B 88T
million, which was based on the placing price of HK$0.8 per share  JyiRIEAREEGR08EB TR EHM TN ER
and the actual expenses related to the Listing. After the Listing, these HIXEF - tHi% @ ZZWFDEMNES AR
proceeds were and will be used for the purposes in accordance with A TR 2016 12 A 30 B B ZI2FTEiHI &
the future plans as set out in the prospectus of the Company dated — Kzt2l -

30 December 2016.

The net proceeds from the Placing from the date of the Listingto 31 R EEREMNMEFIEEFRHEE T HEES
March 2017 were used as follows: 20173 A31 HIEHREE/E T HIAE

Planned use of
proceeds as
shown in the

Planned use of Prospectus
proceeds as from the date
shown in the of the Listing to

Prospectus 31 March 2017

(adjusted on (adjusted on Actual use of

a pro rata aprorata proceeds from Unutilised
basis based basis based the date of amount
on the actual on the actual the Listing to as at
net proceeds)  netproceeds) 31 March 2017 31 March 2017

ARER

=l

AHEZE

BRER 20175

FréisE 3A31AL
RS fENEE BEmAH
TEARE RE (RER BE20175F

(REBFE A 3A31ALE ®n
REFER BRI HERE 2017F3A31H
HAhIRE) RAE) FENERAZR HABRNGE
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FAL FHL FHL FHL
(Note a)

(Fizta)

Expand our network of medical AT FIREEH 24,200 3,500 - 3,500 (Note b)
aesthetic centres BEXARLAR (Fi3ED)
in Hong Kong

Broaden the variety of BARMERRER 14,600 - 4,787 - (Notec)
treatment services ERRESR (MEc)
and product offering

Refurbish our CWB Centre BB MaRE gL 4,500 - - -

Upgrade our IT infrastructure  FHAR 3k FI80 & 51 F 3R e 7,700 - 3,119 - (Note d)

(P3Ed)

General working capital —REELS 4,600 1,000 1,000 -

55,600 4,500 8,906 3,500
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Use of Proceeds (Continued)
Note:

(@) The unused proceeds are deposited in a licensed bank in Hong Kong.

(b) The listing proceeds of approximately HK$3.5 million have not been utilised as at
31 March 2017, as we postponed our plan to open a new medical aesthetic
centre in Kowloon from this year to mid 2018 due to the availability of leasing
space in a large scale shopping complex located in the most popular area in Tsim
Sha Tsui early next year.

(c) We brought forward the broadening of the variety of treatment services and
product offering in order to provide better service to our customer.

(d) We brought forward the upgrading of our IT infrastructure in order to optimise our
operation and increase overall efficiency. We are at the initial stage of upgrading
the Accounting, Human Resource & POS system. The above systems expect to
be completed at the end of year of 2017.

Prospects

Following the footstep of the more developed medical aesthetic
services markets, acceptance of medical aesthetic services in Hong
Kong has been growing fast in the past few years. The aging
population plus individuals today paying more attention to their
appearance, wishing to stay youthful and attractive as well as self-
confident are also the reasons behind the greater demand for medical
aesthetic services. In addition, from the industry’s perspective, the
hastened pursuit of technological innovation and improvement of
treatment devices have presented players with abundant growth
opportunities and also helped enhance the overall competitiveness of
the industry.

Seeing strong potential in the medical aesthetic services industry in
Hong Kong, our Group plans to enlarge its market share by
broadening the variety of its medical aesthetic treatment services and
product offerings. Our Group will continue to stay abreast of
development of treatment technology and skin care products, with
the support of market research findings and by maintaining close
relationships with suppliers aiming for product enhancement. To
satisfy the growing and more and more sophisticated needs of
customers, we will work hard on all fronts to upgrade existing
services, not limited to procuring latest treatment devices and
sourcing new skin care products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Prospects (Continued)

To expand our network of medical aesthetic centres in Hong Kong,
our Group continues to keep an eye on prime locations to expand our
network of medical aesthetic centres and has identified a leasing
space in a large scale shopping complex located in the most popular
area in Tsim Sha Tsui. We believe it will enable us to capture the
anticipated growth of the medical aesthetic services industry.

Customer safety is of utmost importance to our Group, thus we
practises strict internal controls to ensure all employees are properly
trained and place customers’ interests first. Our Group will continue
to execute and evaluate its internal control protocols, such as
injection procedures and procedures deemed high risk by its doctors,
measures for monitoring and preventing excessive pitching of prepaid
packages, and ensuring the quality of own-label skin care products
and treatment consumables.

Last but not least, our Group owes its success to the experience of
our senior management and professional team and we appreciate the
dedication and efforts of all employees. Thus, we will continue to put
resources into providing training and professional development
opportunities to employees as encouragement and also a means to
retain experienced personnel. Such moves speak to the determination
of our Group to ensure employee and service excellence and that our
professional teams — our Group’s vital and valuable asset — are able
to continue proffering their expertise and knowledge to help foster
growth of our Group.

QOur Group is confident of our capability to provide customers with
quality service and from the heart. Moving forward, to keep fortifying
this confidence, our Group will focus on bringing our strengths,
customer base and reputation plus other advantages to full play so as
to assure the stable development of our core business and in turn
generate lucrative returns for shareholders.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEBZBERE

Executive Director

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (Z37) (with former name Lai Chi, Gigi (32%)),
aged 45, is an executive Director, chairlady of Board and chief
executive officer. She is also the chairlady of the nomination
committee and a member of the remuneration committee. She is
responsible for the overall management, branding and strategic
planning, marketing and development of the Group. Ms. LAl Ka Yee
Gigi (Mrs. Gigi Ma) joined the Group in July 2009 and was appointed
as a Director on 6 July 2016, re-designated as an executive Director
and appointed as chairlady of the Board and the chief executive
officer on 19 December 2016. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Before founding the Group, Mrs. Gigi Ma was active in the fim and
television entertainment industry between 1985 and 2008. She
withdrew from the film and television entertainment industry in late
2008 and has since devoted her full effort to the development of the
business in the medical aesthetic service industry. Mrs. Gigi Ma is the
sister-in-law of Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry.

Mr. MA Ting Wai Barry (EE£), aged 51, is an executive Director
and our Group’s IT and business development director and is
principally responsible for overseeing the Group’s business expansion
and the development and maintenance of IT systems in relation to
our Group’s business operations. Mr. Ma was appointed as a Director
on 25 July 2016 and was re-designated as the executive Director on
19 December 2016.

Mr. Ma is actively involved in developing the IT infrastructure of the
Group, integrating different departments with the IT platforms, with a
view to enhance operation efficiency. He also performs a vital role in
monitoring and evaluating the Group’s business and strategic
planning.

Mr. Ma graduated from the University of Southern California with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Science, with extensive
experience gained from oversea and in the Greater China region,
ranging from technical to the sales and marketing function of
multinational companies including companies from Fortune 500. He is
an entrepreneur with extensive experience in direct investments and
business development, bringing to the Group his sound know-how in
strategic planning. Mr. Ma is the brother-in-law of Mrs. Gigi Ma.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEBZBERE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David (ZR#§[El ), aged 68, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 19 December 2016. He is
also a member of audit committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Cheng graduated from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1975 with a Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences. He has
extensive experience in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance.
Mr. Cheng has retired from the Head of Shipfinance in the Shipfinance
Department of Credit Agricole CIB with effective from 1 May 2014
and was the Senior Advisor to the Global Shipping Group of that
bank from June 2014 to June 2016. He is now the Honorary
Chairman of Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited. Credit Agricole
CIB and Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited are third parties
independent of the Company and not connected persons of the
Company. Mr. Cheng is a member of the Working Group on
Transportation under the Hong Kong Economic Development
Commission, and a member of Hong Kong Maritime and Port Board,
and he is the chairman of the Promotion and External Relations
Committee of the Maritime and Port Board. In May 2015, Mr. Cheng
was conferred the Distinction of “Chevalier de I'Ordre National du
Mérite” by the French Government. Mr. Cheng has been an
independent non-executive director of Singamas Container Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 716) since 1 November 2012.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEBZBERE

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo (B #&i ), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 19 December 2016. He is the
chairman of the audit and remuneration committees and a member of
the nomination committee. Mr. Cheng has been a member and fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since
December 1987 and August 1998 respectively and a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
1999, and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Ontario, Canada since November 1990. Mr. Cheng has over 30 years
of experience in auditing, finance and business management. He has
been the sole proprietor of Erik Cheng & Co., Certified Public
Accountants in Hong Kong since 1999.

Mr. Cheng also serves as a director of Chiu Chow Chamber of
Commerce, Honorary Director of Hong Kong Rehabilitation Power,
the Adjudicator of Registration of Persons Tribunal, Security Bureau,
The Government of the HKSAR, and a board member of Chartered
Professional Accountants of Canada International — Hong Kong
Chapter.

Mr. Cheng graduated from the University of Kent, England with a
Bachelor’'s degree in Accounting in July 1983 and a Master’s degree
in Accounting and Finance from the London School of Economics,
England in August 1984.

Mr. Cheng currently acts as an independent non-executive director of
a number of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely, CSI
Properties Limited (Stock Code: 497), HKC (Holdings) Limited (Stock
Code: 190), C.P. Lotus Corporation (Stock Code: 121), Chong Hing
Bank Limited (Stock Code: 1111), Top Spring International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3688), Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited
(Stock Code: 194), Goldbond Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
172), Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (Stock Code: 3839),
DTXS Sikk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:
620), CPMC Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 906) and Somerley
Capital Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8439).

Mr. Cheng had acted as an independent non-executive director of
Imagi International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 585) during the
period between July 2010 and January 2016.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEBZBERE

Mr. LI Wai Kwan (Z{##), aged 45, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 19 December 2016. He is
a member of the audit committee and remuneration committee.

Mr. Li has many years of experience in finance and investment
management. He has been the chief financial officer of Zhuhai
Dahengain Company Limited (Zk /& K#& Z % (5 A R A 7)), which is
principally engaged in primary land development, since December
2013. From March 2005 to September 2006, he worked for Esprit
Holdings Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (“Main Board”) (stock code: 330) and principally engaged
in retail and wholesale distribution of lifestyle products, and he served
as a vice president of operational finance and a vice president of
finance in Asia Pacific region from March 2005 to July 2006 and from
August 2006 to September 2006 respectively, and he was
responsible for finance and operational matters. From October 2006
to September 2010, he was a vice president of China Agri-Industries
Holdings Limited, which is listed on the Main Board (stock code: 606)
and principally engaged in processing on agricultural products, and
he was responsible for finance and investment matters. He was a
managing director of COFCO Agricultural Investment Fund
Management Company Limited, which is principally engaged in asset
management, from September 2010 to October 2011, and he was
responsible for managing overall business and investment matters.
He was a managing director of Origo Partners Plc, whose shares are
listed on alternative investment market of the London Stock Exchange
and principal business is private equity investment, from November
2011 to January 2013, and he was responsible for investment
matters.

Mr. Li is an executive committee member and treasurer of the Hong
Kong — ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation since 2015 and
an executive director of the Certified Management Accountants
Australia Hong Kong Branch since 2016, a committee member of
Public Awareness Committee of Hong Kong Society of Financial
Analysts since 2016, and a director of the board of Chartered
Professional Accountants of Canada — Hong Kong Chapter since
2017. Mr. Li was a member of the general committee and the
chairman of the investor relations committee of The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies from 2008 to 2010. He was appointed as an
honorary vice chairman of China Enterprise Reputation & Credibility
Association (Overseas) in 2009. He was the chairman of the
partnership and promotion committee of the Hong Kong Investor
Relations Association from 2009 to 2010. He was a member of the
Organising Committee of Directors of the Year Awards 2010
organised by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He was a member
of finance committee of the Hong Kong Housing Authority from 2010
to 2012.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEBZBERE

Mr. Li graduated from University of Toronto in Canada with a bachelor
of commerce degree in November 1995. He further obtained a
master of business administration degree from York University in
Canada in November 1996. Mr. Li was the guest lecturer of the
Macau University of Science and Technology in 2016. He was
admitted as a certified member of the Certified General Accountants
Association of Canada in October 2002. He became a chartered
financial analyst of the Association for Investment Management and
Research in September 2001 and a certified public accountant of the
HKICPA in October 2004. In addition, he was admitted as an
associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountant in England and
Wales in June 2008, a fellow member of Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in April 2010, a chartered professional
accountant member of the Chartered Professional Accountants of
British Columbia, Canada in June 2015, and a fellow certified
management accountant of the Institute of Certified Management
Accountants in April 2016. He has been an independent non-
executive director of K W Nelson Interior Architect Group Limited
(stock code: 8411) since 18 November 2016, and an independent
non-executive director of Enterprise Development Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1808) since 27 April 2017.

Senior Management

Ms. AU Kar Po Marian (EZ¥), aged 53, has been the Chief
Operations Officer of the Company since June 2016. Ms. Au is
primarily responsible for devising and supervising the execution of
business strategies in the long-term growth of the Company.

Ms. Au has over 25 years’ experience in sales and operation in the
health and beauty industry, including over six years of experience in
working in companies providing medical aesthetic services. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Au was the regional business development
manager at Lisbeth Enterprises Limited trading as Phillip Wain
International mainly responsible for undertaking business
development activities from July 2015 to May 2016. Ms. Au had also
worked at other different medical aesthetic and/or slimming and
beauty companies since August 1988.

Ms. Au graduated from the University of Guelph, Ontario, Canada
with a Bachelor Degree in Applied Science in June 1985.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEBZBERE

Ms. LAM Chi Wei Jullie (#fIE®), aged 42, joined the Group as
senior sales and operation manager in August 2012. She was then
promoted as the Director of Sales & Operation of the Group in April
2014. Ms. Lam is primarily responsible for formulating and
implementing sales strategies to drive the sales growth and achieving
sales targets for the Group.

Ms. Lam has 10 years of experience in sales and/or marketing in the
health and beauty industry. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Lam was a
Centre Manager at Reenex Clinique Limited and Reenex Medical
Clinique Limited, medical aesthetic solutions providers, from 2009 to
2012.

Ms. Lam obtained Bachelor of Business Administration from the
University of Management & Technology, Virginia, the United States in
September 2014. Ms. Lam also obtained a Diploma in Corporate
Training Professionals from Quality Tourism Services Association in
November 2013.

Ms. TSANG Chui Ying (& 2#8), aged 33, joined the Group in
January 2012 and became the senior account manager in February
2014. She is now the financial controller of the Group. She is primarily
responsible for financial reporting and planning, treasury and financial
control, Ms. Tsang was admitted as a member of the HKICPA in
November 2009 and became fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in March 2017.

Ms. Tsang graduated from the Lingnan University with a Bachelor
degree in Business Administration majoring in accounting in
November 20086. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Tsang was previously
employed by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September 2006 to
May 2010. She was then employed by Cargill Hong Kong Limited as
an accountant from May 2010 to January 2012.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SRERRE

Corporate Governance Code

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) recognise the importance of
achieving the highest standard of corporate governance consistent
with the needs and requirements of its businesses and the best
interest of all of its stakeholders, and the board of directors (the
“Board”) is fully committed to doing so. The Board believes that high
standards of corporate governance provide a framework and solid
foundation for the Group to manage business risks, enhance
transparency, achieve high standard of accountability and protect
stakeholders’ interests.

The Company has adopted the principles and the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. During the period from the
listing date to 31 March 2017, the Company had complied with all the
applicable code provisions of the CG Code, except the deviation
stipulated below.

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Under the current management
structure of the Company, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (Mrs. Gigi Ma) is the
chairlady of the Board (the “Chairlady”) and chief executive officer of
the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”). As Mrs. Gigi Ma has
been leading the Group as the Group’s Chief Executive Officer and
sole director of each of major subsidiaries since the establishment of
the relevant major subsidiaries, the Board believes that it is in the best
interest of the Group to continue to have Mrs. Gigi Ma acting as the
Chief Executive Officer and Chairlady of the Board for more effective
management and planning of the Group. Therefore, the Board
considers that the deviation from provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is
appropriate in the circumstances and currently does not propose to
separate the functions of chairman and the chief executive officer.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERERBME

Compliance of Code of Conduct for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
directors adopted by the Company throughout the period from the
listing date to 31 March 2017.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, the
composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 6 July 2016)

Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry
(appointed on 25 July 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo
(appointed on 19 December 2016)
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David
(appointed on 19 December 2016)
Mr. Li Wai Kwan
(appointed on 19 December 2016)

Since the listing of the Company and up to the date of this report, the
Board has complied with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules
to have at least three independent non-executive Directors who
represent more than one-third of the Board and with at least one of
whom possesses appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise pursuant to
Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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The Board has received from each Independent Non-Executive
Director (“INED”) a written annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 and 5.10 of the GEM Listing Rules, and the
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”)
has assessed the independence of each INED and the Company
considers that each of their independence is in compliance with
5.05(1) and 5.05(2) and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules as at the date
of this annual report. Each INED will inform the Company in writing as
soon as practicable if there is any change of circumstances which
may affect his independence.

Other than Mrs. Gigi Ma is the sister-in-law of Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry,
the Directors do not have financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers the current structure, size and composition of the Board is
performing a balanced and independent monitoring function on
management practices to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy. The Directors and their biographical details as at the date of
this annual report are set out on pages 22 to 27 of this annual report.

Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the Chairlady of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”). As Mrs. Gigi Ma has
been leading the Group as the Group’s chief executive officer and
sole director of each of major subsidiaries since the establishment of
the relevant major subsidiaries, the Board believes that it is in the best
interest of the Group to continue to have Mrs. Gigi Ma acting as the
Chief Executive Officer and Chairlady of the Board for more effective
management and planning of the Group. Therefore, the Board
considers that the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code is appropriate in the circumstances and currently does not
propose to separate the functions of chairman and the chief executive
officer.

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the Chairlady of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company who is responsible for overall management, branding
and strategic, planning, marketing and development of our Group.
She also is a member of remuneration committee and chairing the
Nomination Committee.
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Roles and Responsibility of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes controlling resources allocation of the Company and
leading the Company to strive for success. It oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management
and performances. The management team is delegated with the
authority and responsibility by the Board for the daily management of
the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by
the Board to the management include (1) the preparation of quarterly,
interim and annual reports and announcements for the Board’s
approval before publishing; (2) implementation of adequate systems
of internal controls and risk management procedures; and (3)
compliance with relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and
rules and regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine
the appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures
are in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
objectives.

Board/Board Committee Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Company, and to
review and approve the Company’s quarterly, interim and annual
results. During the period from the listing date to 31 March 2017, one
Board meeting was held for approving the 2017 third quarterly results
and the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is set out
in the section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and
Committee Member” of this report. On 20 June 2017, the board
meeting has approved, among other matters, the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2017.
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Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairlady in preparing the agenda for
meetings to comply with all applicable rules and regulations. The
agenda and the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to
Directors at least three days before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to
Directors for their comment before being tabled at the next Board
meeting for approval. The minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.
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Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

HE T BITEBRE
Board Meeting Audit Committee
EEgeR EREES
Executive Directors BITES
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi BRI 2+ 1/1 -
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry HRERELE 1/1 -
Independent Non-Executive Directors B EHITES
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David B 5t A4 1/1 11
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BIER AN & 1/1 11
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FRELLE 1/1 1/1

Appointment, Re-election, Rotation and Removal of
Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of Members after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, not less than one-
third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation provided that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years.
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to further enhance and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company received from the Directors the
following records of the training attended during the period from the
listing date to 31 March 2017.

EEABLMBESERR

RATRSEFAAEESL2HEBEFTELREIILN
MEHHEEZ M#S R RN SEHETR
BEEEMRIEMENER THESSED
HEf - EEHERARBRBUTESHRE L
A E2017E3 A31 HHIM AL ENE
28R

Nature of Trainings

I E
Type 1 Type 2
18 28

Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi BRI 2+ v
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry BEERE v
Independent Non-Executive Directors B E#{TE=
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo LGRS A& v 4
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David SR B 5 A 4
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FRELE v
Type of trainings: BEFIREY
1. Reading materials. 1. BB o
2. Attending training sessions/conference/forum/workshops/seminars 2. IR g% w8 e g -

Corporate Governance Function

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board, which include (a) develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make recommendations
to the Board; (b) review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management of the
Company and its subsidiaries; (c) review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries; (e) review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in the corporate
governance report of the Company required to be prepared pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules; and (f) consider, review and decide any
other topics, as authorised by the Board. The Board reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group on 20 June
2017 and was satisfied with the effectiveness of its corporate
governance policy.
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Audit Committee

An audit committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference following the code provision C.3.3 of the
CG Code. The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) is authorised to commit Company funds in order to
obtain advice from outside legal counsel, accountants, investigatory
services or other expert advice. Details of the authority and
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and
Mr. Li Wai Kwan and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

During the period from the listing date to 31 March 2017, one
meeting of the Audit Committee was held to review the third quarterly
results of the Group and the meeting was attended by the Company’s
external auditor so that the members of the Audit Committee could
exchange their views and concerns on the financial reporting process
of the Group with the auditor. All members of the Audit Committee
attended the meeting.

Subsequent to the year under review and up to the date of this annual
report, the Audit Committee has held one meeting and reviewed with
the Management and the external auditor the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal
controls, and financial reporting matters including the following:

° the review of the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2017;

° the recommendation to the Board for the proposal for re-
appointment of the external auditor of the Company and
approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor; and

o the review of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in
the section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and Committee
Members” of this report.
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Remuneration Committee

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference following the code provision B.1.2
of the CG Code and the majority of the members of the Remuneration
Committee are Independent Non-Executive Directors and responsible
to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management.
Details of the authority and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director,
namely Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi and two Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Li Wai Kwan. Mr.
Cheng Yuk Wo is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the period from the listing date to 31 March 2017, no
Remuneration Committee meeting was held. On 20 June 2017, the
Remuneration Committee held a meeting to approve the
remuneration packages and performance bonuses for the Directors
and senior management of the Company.

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
March 2017 is set out below:

ML Eg

SRS RELEXE S TR FEBI.2HMNK
VHMEZEEe wARTERHRERE BF
MEB@RIORERBULIFNITES - FM
ZERRENESSREARAENNTESRR
BREEBZHMTE FMEE S 2BEN
BB FBNARR LB v &R -

FHZE e —RRTES  RMRIMK
T RMEBBELIFNITES  AEFMELR
FRERLE -BHEMELERFHEESTE -

REETHEZE2017F3 831 BEAR - M
ZEgUWEBITEH - N2017F6 4208 -
YFNEESRIT - RSHRMMERRREER
ERERE B RRBIL -

BELCEEATIEBISE  RNEZ20174F
SAZ HILFEZRFMARZ D 2R EEA
BEMEIIMT

Number of
individuals
Remuneration band (HK$) a3 (GBT) AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 2
HK$1,000,000-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,000 7t —1,500,000 /% 7T 1

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
March 2017 are set out in note 7 to the financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with
specific terms of reference following the code provision A.5.2 of the
CG Code. The Nomination Committee is responsible for, amongst
other things, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, considering the reappointment of the Directors and
succession planning for Directors and making recommendations to
the Board in respect of the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority
and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director,
namely Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi and two Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo.
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi is the chairlady of the Nomination Committee.

During the period from the listing date to 31 March 2017, no
Nomination Committee meeting was held. On 20 June 2017, the
Nomination Committee held a meeting to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and concluded that members of the
Board have possessed the expertise and independence to carry out
the Board’s functions and responsibilities.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the basis to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against selection criteria.

For selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not be limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board taking into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time and with due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board’s composition will
be disclosed in the annual report of the Company. The Board will give
adequate consideration to this policy when it identifies suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board.
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As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five Directors,
amongst them, three are Independent Non-Executive Directors,
thereby promoting critical review and control of the management
process. The Board is also characterized by significant diversity,
regardless in terms of age, professional experience, skills and
knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’s composition, the
Nomination Committee considered that the requirements of the Policy
had been met.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to implement
the Policy and review such objectives from time to time to ensure
their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. At present, the Board has not set any
measurable objectives.

The nomination committee will review the Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements on an on-going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary, for each financial period
with a view to ensure that such financial statement gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and of the results and
cash flows for the financial year. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board has selected
appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which
are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial statements,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and ensured the preparation of the financial statements on the going
concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance, position
and prospects. The quarterly, interim and annual results of the
Company are announced in a timely manner within the limit of 45
days, 45 days and three months, respectively, after the end of the
relevant periods in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all
information and representation contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The responsibility of the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”.
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Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to Ermnst
& Young is set out as follows:

Services rendered

N
2

Gl

REBEFER BN/ BN TGRS

PRz BN &HNAT

Fee paid/payable

PR it AR 7% B ENEA
HK’000
FET
Audit services ZHRTE 880
Non-audit services IEZ RIS
— as reporting accountant for the Company’s — BEERARIRE ZBRSETAD
Placing 2,880
— other services — HApRA 568

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness. The Board
oversees the overall risk management of the Group and endeavours
to identify, control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The risk
management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems have
been developed with the following features and processes:

(@  The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification: Identifies risks that may potentially affect the
Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment: Assesses the risks identified by using the
assessment criteria developed by the management; and
considers the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response: Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of
the risk assessment; and determines the risk management
strategies and internal control processes to prevent, avoid or
mitigate the risks.
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Risk Monitoring and Reporting: Performs ongoing and periodic
monitoring of the risk and ensures that appropriate internal
control processes are in place; revises the risk management
strategies and internal control processes in case of any
significant change of situation; and reports the results of risk
monitoring to the management and the Board regularly.

(b)  The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems are summarised as follows:

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance
with relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper
maintenance of accounting records for provision of reliable
financial information used within the business or for publication;
ensure that unauthorized access and use of inside information
are strictly prohibited; and to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is currently
of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit
function within the Group in light of the size, nature and complexity of
the Group’s business. Nevertheless the Company engaged an
external professional firm to carry out internal audit functions. It was
decided that the Board would be directly responsible for internal
control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external professional firm as its risk
management and internal control review adviser (“the Adviser”) to
conduct the annual review of the risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 March 2017. Such review is
conducted annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The
scope of review was previously determined and approved by the
Board. The Adviser has reported findings and areas for improvement
to the Audit Committee and management. The Board and Audit
Committee are of the view that there are no material internal control
defeats noted. All recommendations from the Adviser are properly
followed up by the Group to ensure that they are implemented within
a reasonable period of time. The Board therefore considered that the
risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate.
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Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information
about the Group. The Company has adopted a Policy on Disclosure
of Inside Information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and
procedures for handling and dissemination of inside information. With
those guidelines and procedures, the Group has management
controls in place to ensure that potential inside information can be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the
Board to decide about the need for disclosure.

Compliance Officer

Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry has been appointed as the compliance officer
of our Company. His biographical details are set out in section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in
this report.

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
Company secretarial service and has appointed Mr. LO Tai On as its
Company Secretary on 12 September 2016. Mr. Lo is a member of
HKICPA and has over 25 years of experience in the field of company
secretarial services. Mr. Lo has confirmed that for the year under
review, he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training. Mr. Lo is not an employee of our Group and he is responsible
for advisory to the Group on corporate governance matters. Ms.
Tsang Chui Ying, our financial controller, is the person who Mr. Lo
can contact for the purpose of code provision F.1.1 of the Code.
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Shareholders’ Right
Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and to put forward proposal at general meetings.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general
meetings. Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Article 85 of the articles of association of the Company provides that
no person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as
a Director at any general meeting unless a notice signed by a member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting. The written
notice must state that person’s biographical details as required by
Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules. The procedures for
shareholder of the Company to propose a person for election as
director is posted on the Company’s website.

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the compliance officer by post at Room
1605, 16th Floor, Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong. The compliance officer shall forward the
Shareholder(s)’ enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant
Board committees of the Company, where appropriate, to respond to
the Shareholder(s)’ enquiries.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company communicates with its Shareholders and investors
through various means. Timely publication of quarterly, interim and
annual results announcements on the latest development
of the Company and press release on the Company’s website
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website at
www.hkexnews.hk could make the Shareholders appraise the
Company’s financial position. Shareholders are highly required to pay
attention to these public information. Holding of an annual general
meeting could provide an effective forum for the Shareholders to
share their views with the Board. No general meeting was held during
the period from the listing date to 31 March 2017. Shareholders are
welcome to attend the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
Directors and the external auditor of the Company would be available
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer Shareholders’
questions about the annual results for the year ended 31 March
2017.

Investor Relations

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company’s website and by means of emails to the
investor relations department (email address: miricor@sprg.com.hk).
The management always provides prompt responses to any such
enquiries.

Constitutional Documents

The Company has published its memorandum of association and the
Articles on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. During the period from the listing date to 31 March 2017,
no amendments were made to the constitutional documents of the
Company.
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About this Report

Preparation Basis and Scope

This Report is prepared in accordance with Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Reporting Guide set out by Appendix 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules and has complied with the “comply or explain”
provisions. It summarizes the Group in respect of corporate social
responsibility during the reporting period, covering the Group’s core
businesses — the provision of medical aesthetic services, and the
sale of skin care products in Hong Kong. This Report shall be
published both in Chinese and English. Should there be any
discrepancy between the Chinese and the English versions, the
English version shall prevail.

This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017.

Introduction

The Group is a medical aesthetic service provider in Hong Kong and
operates two medical aesthetic centres in the prime locations of
Causeway Bay and Central under our brand “CosMax”. We offer a
broad range of non-surgical medical aesthetic services and skin care
products to our clients with an aim to improve their skin conditions as
well as to enhance their physical appearance.

The Group has recognized the importance of sustainable
development. Sustainability is crucial for the Group’s growth in order
to achieve business excellence and enhance capabilities for long-term
competitiveness. The Group has established and implemented
various policies to manage and monitor the risks related to
environment, employment, operating practices and community.
Details of the management approaches to sustainable development
of different areas are illustrated in this Report.
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Stakeholders Engagement

Stakeholders engagement is essential to the formulation of strategies
for sustainable development. It allows the Group to understand risks
and opportunities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are
important to our business and established various channels for

R B2 R

HERIREERBEROBRERFHESH -
FEUEARE T HEERLEE - AKECDRER
ZHEEFD
SREBBTHNER -

S 20 R (Bl VE S8 AV

communication.

Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures

B E HE SERE Ei=i

Government Comply with laws and pay Exchange of Operated, managed and paid taxes

proper tax payments correspondences, relevant  according to laws and regulations,
meetings and information  strengthened safety management;
disclosure accepted government’s supervision,
inspection and evaluation.
B BPRRERZEHNTIE BAMEK HEgEKE BEREERERELE  BERENBT

Shareholders and
Investors

BRMEE

Employees

il
il

e

Provide high transparency
for information disclosure

and protect shareholder’s
rights and interest

RERWERHSERE
LA Be R B B SR ) B )

Maintain a safe and
respectful workplace,
including equal
opportunities as well as
health and safety

HEFZE2MNEENTIFS
B BRFPEREUARE

FHEEE

Annual reports, interim
reports, quarterly reports
and announcements

Annual general meeting
and other shareholder

meetings

Fil - WHARE - FER
ERRE
BRERBF ARG M EAMAR
g

Training and briefing
sessions, employee
feedback mechanism, and
fair mechanism for
employment and
promotion

Bk ERE EERE
ST 58 i3 0N
R
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Disclosed company’s information by
publishing annual reports, interim reports,
quarterly reports and announcements.

Issued notices of general meeting and
proposed resolutions according to
regulations.
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Provided training to employees; provided
employment and promotion practices that
do not discriminate on grounds of gender,
disability, pregnancy, family status, race,
colour, religion, age or other conditions
recognized in law.
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Stakeholders Engagement (Continued)

B EXE (8)

Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures
BHE e SHERE it
Customers Provide safe, high-quality =~ Customer satisfaction Strengthened quality management to
products and services to  surveys, customer ensure safety, high quality production and
customers feedback activities, day to  communicate with customers to improve
day operations/ quality of services.
communications, service
and product complaints
and response mechanisms
S AEPRELZE  BEE FPRERADT TPRE NREEEEURRZ:  BE4EE-
an N2 AR 7% EE) - BEEE B TEREPBBUNSEREEE -
R 75 % 2 G 1% o % [B] e 1
il
Environmental Aspects RIBEM
Emission BB

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to sustainable development
and compliance with laws and regulations relating to environmental
protection, the Group endeavors to minimise the environmental
impact of the business activities and maintain green operations and
green office practices.

The Group has established system to ensure environmental
compliance. It seeks to optimise its production by adopting low
energy consumption and environmental pollution techniques and
enhancing the environmental awareness of the employees through
regular trainings. The management team has the overall responsibility
for environmental protection matters within the Group. The
management team reviews the Group’s environmental compliance on
a regular basis. The Group was in strict compliance with related
environmental laws and regulation, including but not limited to Waste
Disposal Ordinance. The Group was not subject to any environmental
claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions during the
reporting period.
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Emission (Continued)

In the daily operation of the Group, the major emissions are clinical
wastes and the greenhouse gas incurred by the purchased energy
resources. Clinical wastes generated by the operations can be
divided into two categories. Category A includes syringes, needles,
cartridges and other sharp instruments which have been used or
which have become contaminated. Category B includes surgical
dressings, swabs dribbling with blood, caked with blood or containing
free-flowing blood. Clinical wastes collection box is placed in each
doctor’s room. Category A waste is collected in Sharps Collector.
Once it is filled up, it must be covered and wait for recycle. Category
B waste is collected in red biochemical wastes plastic bags. All
wastes are separately stored and handled with ledger for record.
Qualified clinical waste recycling companies are engaged to perform
waste disposal and treatment so as to minimize the impact on the
nature.

Climate change is gradually concerned by the community. The Group
manages the carbon footprint by minimizing the energy consumption
and water consumptions as these activities cause significant emission
of greenhouse gas. Policies and procedures adopted on resources
saving are mentioned in the section “Use of resources” of this Report.

Use of Resources

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environment, Health and Safety Policy”,
the Group strives to improve the efficient use of natural resources,
including energy such as minimize waste streams and emissions and
implement effective recycling program. The Group also adopted
“Environmental Office Practices” in order to use resource more
efficiently. Some of the key measures are as follows:

Paper Saving

In office, we encourage the employee to use both sides of paper and
use suitable font size/shrinkage mode to minimise pages, if possible.
Besides, use electronic media is recommended for circulation/
communication, to minimize using paper. (eg. without unnecessary
cover page and fax)

Water Conservation
Employee should report leaking faucet or pipe to the relevant authority
and turn off the tap when not in use.
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Use of Resources (Continued)

Electricity Conservation

The electrical appliance should be set as energy saving mode where
possible. For computers, the idle automatically mode is 20 minutes or
less. The set room temperature should be set in a range from 20°C to
25.5°C. The ideal optimal temperature is 25.5°C. Also, switch off
unnecessary lighting and power supply should be switched off when
they are not in use.

Green Pantry

Employee are encouraged to use reusable cutleries, cups and
glasses and use environmental friendly cleaning products (e.g.
biodegradable or phosphate free detergent, refillable soap, etc.).

The Environment and Natural Resources

According to the Group’s “Environmental Health and Safety Policy”,
the Group raises staff's awareness of environmental issues through
education and training and enlist their support in improving our
performance, promote environmental awareness amongst our
customers, business partners and shareholders and support
community activities in relation to environmental protection and
sustainability and evaluate regularly and monitor past and present
business activities impacting upon health, safety and environmental
matters. With the integration of policies mentioned in session
“Emission” and “Use of Resource”, the Group is allowed to minimize
the impacts to the environment and natural resources.

Social Aspects

Employment and Labour Practice

Employment

The Group considers human resources as its most important asset,
employees are encouraged to invest in career growth where the
Group provides on-the-job training, and further education supports
that enhance their professional knowledge and skills, thus improving
the overall calibre of its workforce. In addition, the Group also
evaluates employee performance on a regular basis and recognises
and rewards outstanding employees. The Group has established and
implemented “Staff Handbook”, which contains the policies relating to
human resources, covering areas such as compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits
and welfare.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

The remuneration package of our employees includes basic salary,
commission and discretionary performance bonus. In order to
incentivise our staff for their contribution to improve our business
performance, we have formulated an incentive scheme for certain
front-line employees with their commission linked to the amount of
sales of our services and products. We offer a fixed commission rate
which applies uniformly across all services and products we offer,
including the sales of one-off treatment, prepaid packages and skin
care products.

It is our objective to provide equality of opportunity for all staff in
relation to all human resources matters. We shall recognize and
reward meritorious performance and provide equal opportunity of
employment irrespective of sex, age, marital status, race, religion,
disability or employment status. The principle of equal opportunities is
applied in all employment policies, in particular to recruitment,
training, career development and promotion of employees. If
employee is treated unequally in the workplace, he/she can report to
the supervisors.

Further, we offer welfare and benefits for all our employees to foster
their loyalty to our Group. For examples, employee can enjoy discount
for treatment and products in our company. Basically, every rule in
the handbook is set in accordance with all relevant laws and
regulations including but not limited to Employment Ordinance.
During the reporting period, there was one case of complaint and it
was settled. The Group will continue to strive to comply with the
relevant laws and regulations.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Health and Safety

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environmental Health and Safety Policy”,
no job is so important and no service so urgent, that we cannot take
time to perform our work safely, and in an environmentally
conscientious manner. The Group strives to provide staff with a safe
and healthy work environment and develop a safety awareness
among employees and others engaged in work, so that accidents
(personal injuries and property damage) and occupational illnesses
will be reduced to a minimum. In order to raise employees’ awareness
in maintaining health and safety issues, the Group offers safety
training programs and hazards measurement programs. Besides,
safety equipment is provided to the employees. Also, it is the
responsibility for the Group to identify and control safety, public
health, and environmental hazards associated with their operations
and work constructively with government agencies and others to
develop and implement laws, regulations, and standards to protect
public health, safety, and the environment.

During the reporting period, the Group was in strict compliance with
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and there was no related
work injuries or fatalities and no legal case regarding health and safety
brought against the Group.

Development and Training

The Group believes that providing training to our staff is also an
important factor in attracting and retaining employees. The Group
aims to facilitate personal and professional development enabling
individuals and groups to achieve their full potential at work according
to the Group’s “Staff Training and Development Policy”.

The Group is committed to provide professional trainings to our
trained therapists in order to provide quality services to our clients.
Qur trainings included both theoretical and practical trainings and our
training program has been specifically formulated by our doctors and
training manager. We have also established our own training centre
(CosMax Academy) to strengthen the quality of our trainings offered
to our staff. We are of the view that the ability to keep abreast of the
latest trend in medical aesthetic services and to offer quality
service will impact our client traffic, revenue growth and financial
performance.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Development and Training (Continued)

From time to time, our doctors attend industry conferences, seminars
and workshops in Hong Kong and overseas as well as seminars
organised by our suppliers on topics such as injection procedures
and energy-based procedures.

We require our newly recruited therapists to undergo a six-month
training programme provided by us prior to performing treatments as
agreed by the doctors for our clients.

In recognition of our achievement in manpower training and
development and in fostering an organisational culture conducive to
life-long learning, we were awarded the status of “Manpower
Developer” under the “ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme
2015-16" for two years from April 2016 to March 2018 by the
Employees Retraining Board in 2016.

Labour Standard

According to “No Child Labour Policy”, the Group does not employ
any person below the age of eighteen years at the workplace and
prohibits the use of child labour and forced or compulsory labour at
all its units. No employee is made to work against his/her will or work
as bonded/forced labour, or subject to corporal punishment or
coercion of any type related to work. Employment contracts and
other records, documenting all relevant details of the employees,
including age, are maintained at all units and are open to verification
by any authorised personnel or relevant statutory body. The unit
provides an annual report to the functional head on any incidents of
child or forced labour. Periodic assessment is conducted. The human
resources department undertakes random checks of records
annually.

During the reporting period, the Group complied with the Employment
Ordinance, Chapter 57 and did not violated any relevant labour laws
and regulations including child and forced labour laws and
regulations.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established “Procurement Policy and Guide to
Procedures” which aims to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations and appropriate social practices governing our
businesses, provide suppliers with equal opportunities for transactions
with the Group; and promote procurement activities based on mutual
understanding and trust. In order to manage the environmental or
social risks in the supply chain, we have strengthen the control in
procurement of treatment devices/consumables and skin care
products as below.

Treatment devices/treatment consumables

We place great emphasis on ensuring that treatment devices to be
introduced for use in our medical aesthetic centres are reliable and
capable of delivering desired results for our clients. To this end, we
have established policies and procedures to evaluate and assess
treatment devices. Our marketing and business development
department is primarily responsible for keeping abreast of the latest
technologies and conducting market research on the latest and
prevailing treatment technologies and skin care products. Periodic
meetings are held among our management, doctors and marketing
and business development department to discuss the latest
technologies and skin care products, during which our marketing and
business development department may recommend the types of
treatment devices to procure. From time to time, suppliers of
treatment devices visit us and demonstrate their treatment devices to
us, which may also provide us with a trial period during which we can
evaluate and assess the use and effectiveness of the treatment
devices.

When deciding whether to procure a new treatment device, we take
into account factors such as (i) whether it is approved by national
government agencies such as the Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) and/or whether such devices bear CE mark(s); (i) whether there
are similar devices on the market; (i) whether it is complementary to
our existing treatment offerings; and (iv) our internal test results. The
approval of our chief executive officer and doctors must be obtained
before we procure a new treatment device.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Skin care products

The skin care products offered by us are supplied by distributors and
manufacturers, all of which are Independent Third Parties. The
countries of origin of our skin care products include the United States,
[taly and France. We select and source skin care products carefully
based on factors such as the suppliers’ background, credentials and
reputation, product quality and cost. The approval of our chief
executive officer and doctors must be obtained before we take in any
new product for sale.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to offering an excellent customer experience
and ensuring that our products and services are safe and high-
quality. We adhere to applicable laws regulating health and safety
standards, as well as those governing testing, advertising and
labeling. The Group was in strict compliance with related laws and
regulations, including but not limited to Trade Description Ordinance,
Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance and Consumer Goods Safety
Regulation during the reporting period. Our aim is for our customers
to have confidence in our products and services, and sufficient
information to make informed choices. Therefore, the Group has a set
of policies and procedures to oversee and manage issues related to
responsibilities of our products and services.

Quality Assurance

Providing quality non-surgical medical aesthetic services is one of our
management priorities. We have adopted comprehensive and
stringent quality assurance and control measures throughout our
business processes that covers, among others, the following aspects:

Recruitment of professional staff

In selecting new doctors and therapists to join us, we assess, among
others, their academic and professional qualifications, years of
relevant experience as well as their character and integrity.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Quality Assurance (Continued)

Performance of consultation and treatments

The carrying out of consultation services that involve the practice of
medicine, medical diagnosis, prescription of pharmaceutical products
and medicines (each as defined under the Pharmacy and Poisons
Ordinance (Chapter 138 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) and certain
types of treatments (such as injection of botulinum toxin type A and
dermal fillers) constitute the practice of medicine and therefore must
be carried out by registered medical practitioners pursuant to the
Medical Registration Ordinance (Chapter 151 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Our doctors carry out consultation services and such certain
treatment procedures which are specified under the relevant laws and
regulations as well as selective treatment procedures perceived by
our doctors as being high risk, whereas our trained therapists perform
other selective treatment procedures as directed by our doctors.
Based on our doctors’ professional experience and judgment on the
risk of severe complication, selective energy-based procedures are
performed by doctors only if there is potential risk of irreversible organ
or tissue damage including nerve injury, muscle burn, fat necrosis or
skin necrosis.

Standard operation procedures and clear division of labour

We implemented standard operation procedures at our medical
aesthetic centres and a clear division of labour to improve operational
and administrative efficiency and enhance the quality of our services.
Our doctors (assisted by medical assistants) and trained therapists
are mainly responsible for performing treatments while our aesthetic
service specialists are mainly responsible for sales and promotion. To
monitor our client’s satisfaction towards the treatment received, we
contact the client within several days after the treatment by phone or
text message to gather his/her feedback. We maintain a log book on
feedback for management review. Such internal structure and well-
defined responsibilities are established for the purpose of segregating
the powers of operations, sales and client service to achieve effective
check and balance.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Customer Data Information Protection

The Group upholds a belief that information security and privacy is
the key principle for operation. We comply with Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance. According to the Group’s Staff Handbook,
employee is required protect all the customers’ information.
Information only can be used in authorized business activities. If
employee disclose those information to other parties, it is considered
as data theft. The related employee’s employment will be terminated
and report to police for prosecution.

Anti-Corruption

In the Group’s “Staff Handbook”, one of the most important rules that
the Group requires all members of staff to observe is that they must
maintain honesty, refuse corruption, refuse to accept kickbacks, and
they must not misappropriate the Group’s funds and properties, must
not abuse power for own interests, and that all gifts received must be
handed to the Group.

The Group shall strive to protect and uphold Group’s and our own
reputation, professionalism and integrity. To this end, we shall avoid
obligations to customers or business associates resulting from
advantages, gifts or entertainment received in or due to our official
capacity which could compromise our position in any way or be
perceived by a third party to potentially compromise ourselves or the
Group. When we participate in any social or academic activities,
either in a personal or official capacity, we shall avoid any unbecoming
acts which will bring us or the Group into disrepute.

Employees could whistle-blow to the supervisor for the suspected
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering issues by email.
Information of the whistleblower is confidential. Once discovered and
confirmed, related personnel will be published or his/her employment
will be terminated. The Group will be report to Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) or other institution depends
on the cases. The Group was in strict compliance with Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance and there was no any legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees during reporting
period.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Community

Community Investment

As a socially responsible company, the Group is committed to
understanding the needs of the communities in which we operate.
The Group has adopted “Community Investment Policy”, it aims to
establish a comprehensive system to oversee the activities related to
community investment. The Group strives to develop long-term
relationship with our stakeholders and seek to make contributions to
programmes that have a positive impact on community development.

The Group made charitable and other donations amounting to
HK$151,000 during the year.
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s ERBE R
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting HekEalEED
Guide
Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section Page
TEHE - -EFEH —BREERBERERES =4z 0] B
A.  Environmental (Note a)
IR (M5t a)
Aspects A1: Emission
EHEAT 3¢
General Disclosure “Emission” 45-46
— MR EE [HER
KPIA1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data “Emission” 45-46
Type of emission mentioned
BB IR  BE W ERE KRR HE B EUE [HER) ]
Al PR K 0 HE i KR B
KPIA1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, The Group currently does N/A
intensity not report on these
indicators. We plan to
report on this in future
reports.
BRGEIIER RAERBENNENR (WER)BE AEEB AT ERZEEE TER
A12 EHR RS o BAPIFTEIRARIK
BV FHETTRERR o
KPI' A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, - N/A
intensity
BRGEUIEER MELESEEVEER(WER)TE TNEA
A1.3
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, - N/A
intensity
FRENIER MELREEEVEER(WER)BE A3 A
Al.4
KPI'A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results - N/A
achieved
BB IR  RUEHE R BV b K TS AR Ayt A3 F

A1.5
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s EEBEXT S BERARRIRE -
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting HeEkEREREES (&)

Guide (Continued)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page

TEHE B —REEREARENESR E=4:0] BEH

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are “Emission” 45-46
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved

BRGEDIER REAENETEEWE  RPHERE LSRR [HER

A1.6

Aspects A2:  Use of Resources

[BEA2 : BIRER
General Disclosure “Use of Resources” 46-47
—MRIREE (&R
KPI A2.1 Direct and indirect energy consumption by type in total The Group currently does N/A
not report on these
indicators. We plan to
report on this in future
reports.
BRGENIER RERSSNEELHERRERE REBE AW ERZERE TEA
A2.1 TEHERE o FAPIETEIRARIEK
BYSRE ETTIESR -
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity - N/A
BRENIEER BRKERTE i
A2.2
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results - N/A
achieved
FRERIER R AU B RAER Rt T3 A
A2.3
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that - N/A
is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved
FRERIER SKEGER/KR R E A ERE - LA RRA RK a5 8 R ATE K A3 A
A2.4 EG0Epu
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting e hERREIES (#)

Guide (Continued)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page

TEHE EEH —REEREARENESR E=4:0] B

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if - N/A
applicable, with reference to per unit produced

MRERIER BENmMAeEMENEE R (WER) BEEEU(hE NiEM

A2.5

Aspects A3:  The Environmental and Natural Resources

[EHE A3 : BRERRAER
General Disclosure “The Environmental and 47
Natural Resources”
—MRIRE [RBERRAER]
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the The Group currently does -
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to not report on this indicator.
manage them We plan to report on this

in future reports.
BRENIER E¥BEBHURERRAERNEATERCKDEREHTE AEEBATERZER
A3.1 BT Ep TEH RS o FAPIRTEIRARIR

BRSSP AETTIESR -

B.  Social (Note b)
& (D)

Aspects B1:  Employment and Labour Practices

[EEB1 : EREERETIER
General Disclosure “Employment” 47-48
—MRHEE [ %]
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and The Group currently does N/A
geographical region not report on these
indicators.
FRASUER IR - EBEEE - SR RiblmE 8 E B RS AEEB R EEZE TEA
B1.1 EEER RS -
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Guide (Continued)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page

TEHE B —REEREARENESR E=4:0] BEH

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical - N/A
region

BRETUER IR - FReAR RItESHSMEERALE T3 A

B1.2

Aspects B2:  Health and safety

B2 : fEEREa L 3
General Disclosure “Health and Safety” 49
—MRHEE [fEREZZ |
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities No work-related fatalities 49
FRERIEE AILEBRERMILTHAZBRLEE A TIEREREBE
B2.1 ST EH -
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury No case of work injuries 49
BRESIEZ ATEBIBANTIEAR mIEER
B2.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures The Group currently does N/A
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored not report on this indicator
FRERIEE FRANBEREHEL2RE - UREENTRERT AN AEEHAEMZESE TEA
B2.3 it fEH RS o

Aspects B3:  Development and Training

[EmBS : R RIE
General Disclosure “Development and Training”  49-50
—MR#EE [ B g3l
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employee trained and employee category The Group currently does N/A
not report on these
indicators
BRESIER ZIEEB DL RIEEET REEBRI S TEA
B3.1 FEEELHE -
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (Continued)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page

TEHE EEH —REEREARENESR E=4:0] B

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender - N/A
and employee category

MRERIER RUMNREERNZS BRESTKZINN TIIRE T3 A

B3.2

Aspects B4:  Labour Standard

[EEBS : 2 T8
General Disclosure “Labour Standard” 50
—RBE 8 T8 |

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to “LLabour Standard” 50
avoid child and forced labour

BB IEIR AT HRISE (I 805 b LA 2 T [ oR I 45 Tev it [55 T8 |

B4.1

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when “Labour Standard” 50
discovered

BRENIER EERERIEARERAE @IS0 RIS A f [85 TR

B4.2

Aspects B5:  Supply Chain Management

EHEBS : HrEEER
General Disclosure “Supply Chain 51-52

Management”

—RRHEE [ E IR |

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by region The Group currently does N/A

not report on this indicator
BRENIER RS EE e REEB MW ERZIER T
B5.1 e RS

i
I8
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting

Guide (Continued)
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=51
HER

ZPAERQRIERE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page
TEHE B —REEREARENESR = B
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging supplies, number of “Supply Chain 51-52
supplies where the practices are being implemented, how they Management”
are implemented and monitored
FRENIESR BEHEREEENED  mERTEBESNMEREE [ e E IR |
B5.2 LAR: B BB DI e 1T I B 53 7 VA RO e it
Aspects B6:  Product Responsibility
A B6 : EmEMR
General Disclosure “Product Responsibility” 52-54
—RRHEE [EmET]
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls The Group currently does N/A
for safety and health reasons not report on these
indicators
FARETIER DEIREZXERAETALRHERRERMAEANKNE Y AEBEMYERZSE TER
B6.1 BERELRE
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received The Group currently does N/A
and how they are dealt with not report on these
indicators
FRENIEER BEREBNERRREHIRFEE AREE X REFEBRIEEEE  TEA
B6.2 BERELRE
KPI B6.3 Description and practices relating to observing and protecting The Group currently does N/A
intellectual property rights not report on these
indicators
FRETUER HEERRENZEEESANELIRL NEE B A mh LS
B6.3 BERELRE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures “Product Responsibility 52-53
— Quallity Assurance”
FRETUEE HEEHTRERE DB F A it [EmEL — E&RE]
B6.4
KPI B6.5 Description of customer data information protection and privacy “Product Responsibility 54
policies, how they are implemented and monitored — Customer Data
Information protection”
FRETIEE BFPEBREMMRERILBESE  URBENTRERT AN [EmEE —
B6.5 ot B EUIRERHRE]
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Guide (Continued)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page

TREE  EFH - -REBERBARENER -} HE

Aspects B7:  Anti-corruption

EB7 : R&3
General Disclosure “Anti-Corruption” 54
— MR EE [RES]

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices No concluded cases 54

brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the case

BRBEIIER RBEHAEETAREEERE TV EEENE THRAREH BOBERMN

B7.1 EPSEIEANES

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing “Anti-Corruption” 54
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored

FRERIER EHEERERER - UEBEENTRERT Al [R&ES]

B7.2

Aspects B8:  Community Investment

[H B8 : HRgE
General Disclosure “Community Investment” 55
— MR EE [tERE ]
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental “Community Investment” 55
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport)
FRGENIER FIERNEE (HE  REHEE  SBNFT KR @E - [TtRiE ]
B8.1 Xk - 885)
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area “Community Investment” 55
MRERIER EZITHEMHANER(MeExKHE) [MtERKRE ]
B8.2
Note: HisE -
() Pursuant to Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, “Comply or explain” provisions (@) RIE A XK R AIMT 8220 - AENE BIIRETUERE
for the KPls in this section will come into effect for the financial years beginning on B[ EFeRIE | (E X eE2017E1 A1 B 2%
or after 1 January 2017. KR E A AR -

(b) Pursuant to Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, KPIs in this section are (b) BEAIENR EmERIM 8520 - ARy E BUEE
recommended disclosures only. R AERE -
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EEEHE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 6 July 2016 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were
listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 10 January 2017.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the provision of
medical aesthetic services and sale of skin care products.

Business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the Group’s business and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 8 to 21 of
this annual report which forms part of this directors’ report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s business. The following
are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.

Government Policies Risk

Following certain adverse incidents in relation to the beauty service
industry in recent years, the Hong Kong Government has been
reviewing the existing legal framework and considering tightening its
supervision over the beauty service industry by promulgating certain
laws and regulations to regulate, among other things, the types of
medical aesthetic procedures that should be performed by registered
medical practitioners. See “Regulatory Overview — Recent
Development in relation to Regulation of Medical Procedures and
Beauty Services, as well as Private Healthcare Facilities” in the
prospectus of the company dated 30 December 2016 for further
details.
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There is no assurance that the Hong Kong Government will not
impose more stringent laws, rules, regulations or industry standards
in connection with the provision of medical aesthetic services. Any
change in the regulatory framework may render it more restrictive for
us to conduct our business. There is also no assurance that we will
be able to adapt to such changes in a timely manner. In addition,
compliance with such new laws, rules, regulations or industry
standards may significantly increase our operating costs, which may
in turn lower our profit margins. Any of the above-mentioned
circumstances may materially and adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Risk of Adverse economic, social or political conditions
All of our business operations are based in and we derive all of our
revenue from Hong Kong. Our business operations and the demand
for our medical aesthetic services are therefore subject to the
economic, social and political conditions in Hong Kong. Furthermore,
any incidence of social unrest, strike, riot, civil disturbance or
disobedience in Hong Kong may cause inconvenience to clients who
wish to visit our medical aesthetic centres and weaken their desire or
willingness to undergo medical aesthetic treatments. Any of the
above circumstances may have a material and adverse impact on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

In addition, during the year, a portion of our revenue was derived from
visitors and tourists from the PRC who do not reside in Hong Kong.
Any reduction in the spending willingness of such PRC visitors and
tourists and any decrease in the number of PRC visitors and tourists
to Hong Kong as a result of anti-mainland sentiment may significantly
reduce our revenue derived from such clients, which could materially
and adversely our results of operations and financial condition.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and
believes business development and environment affairs are highly
related. The Group has implemented certain environmental protection
measures to save energy and reduce the consumption of resources.
These policies were supported by our staff and were implemented
effectively.

In addition, details regarding the Group’s environmental policies and
performance can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 43 to 62 of this annual report.
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Compliance with the laws and regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations. During the year ended 31 March 2017 and up
to the date of this report, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. There was no material
breach or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
by the Group during the period from the listing date to 31 March
2017 and up to the date of this report.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that staff, customers and suppliers are
the key to our sustainable and stable development. We are
committed to establishing a close relationship with our staffs,
enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing high-quality
services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable
development.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
84 of this annual report.

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be held on
Friday, 22 September 2017. A notice convening the meeting will be
issued and sent to the Shareholders in due course.
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Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 15
September 2017 to Friday, 22 September 2017, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares can be registered. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 14 September 2017.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last three financial years is set out on page 152. The summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2017, in the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of
the Company available for distribution to shareholders under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to
HK$52,998,000.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$151,000 (2016: HK$578,000).

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Since the listing date to 31 March 2017, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the sole shareholder
of the Company by way of written resolutions passed on 19 December
2016 for a term of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 March 2017.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save for the Share Options Scheme, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Ms. LAI Ka Yee Gigi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. MA Ting Wai Barry

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr. LI Wai Kwan
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By virtue of articles 83(3) and 84 of the articles of association of the
Company, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (Mrs. Gigi Ma), Mr. MA Ting Wai Barry
and Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and will, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, the Board considers them to be
independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of 3 years commencing from the
date of the Listing and continuing thereafter until terminated by either
party by giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the
other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of 3 years commencing from the date of the
Listing, provided that either the Company or the INEDs may terminate
such appointment at any time by giving at least three months’ notice
in writing to the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Emolument Policy

We have established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and other
remuneration related matters, including benefits in kind and other
compensation payable to the Directors and senior management, after
consultation with the chairman and/or chief executive officer.

Under the remuneration policy of the Company, the Remuneration
Committee will consider factors such as corporate and individual
performance, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group.
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in Note 7 and Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

Other than operating a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the Group has not
operated any other retirement benefit schemes for its employees.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions made by the Group
amounted to HK$865,000 (2016: HK$765,000) for the year ended 31
March 2017.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged appropriate liabilities insurance to
indemnify the Directors from any liabilities and costs arising from the
business of the Group

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every director of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company maintains directors and officers
liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for any legal action
brought against its directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 22 to 27 of the annual report.

Competing Interests

As at 31 March 2017, so far as the Directors are aware, none of the
Directors, the controlling shareholders and substantial shareholders,
neither themselves nor their respective associates (as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules) had held any position or had interest in any
businesses or companies that were or might be directly or indirectly
competing with the business of the Group, or gave rise to any
concern regarding conflict of interest.
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Disclosure of Interests BRI EE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short EERTBEAZNAQ RS EMAEEEE
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and 2B HERORESFZERER K
Debentures of the Company or any Associated B

Corporation

As at 31 March 2017, interests or short positions the Directors and R 2017%3H31H * ARAREBEER T ETHK
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and }\ ERNAANRREREEZE(FTREREANLE
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations  E{&0 ([ B 5 LEEE M) EXVER) A9 D -
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures ﬁﬁﬁ R K AERERE R - A () BIRIEE S K E
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required (i) to be notified to the  E{&HIFEXVIBE 7 K& 8D ZpENE AN &) f B AL
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of  FrHyiEzs sk B (BB RIE(E S RS E))
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they — B RIE I ZE 8 (ESURVETEA B E ARz 2K
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or &) : &k (i) BIR 1B (FE 5 M HIE (517 ) 55 352 %
(i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register E i RNZIKFTIEEZRLMAOEZIOXE + (i)
referred to therein, or (i) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM  ZBREAIZER t TR BIES5.46 2567 KM=
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,  ZK/A &) BB T BERS SRR 0T ¢

were as follows:

a. Long positions in shares of the Company: a. REALQXTROHEERE:
Percentage of
the Company’s
Number of issued
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest shares held share capital
KATE BT
Expg B mtE FrEROEE RAENE DL
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi (“Mrs. Gigi Ma”) Interest of a controlled 300,000,000 75%
oorporation (Note 1)
Byt ([ HERIm it ) ) AEE s (MEE1)
Note: BT
1. Such 300,000,000 shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright 1. % 300,000,000 A% A% 17 LA Y %2 iR B IR A 7]
Group Holdings Limited (“Sunny Bright”), a company beneficially owned as (¥ BEER  ZABESENMMAZ LT
to 50% by Mrs. Gigi Ma and 50% by Mr. Ma Ting Keung, Patrick (“Mr. REEecE((FEREEDHAIERES
Patrick Ma”). Mr. Patrick Ma is the spouse of Mrs. Gigi Ma. Therefore, Mrs. 50% K.50% ° BiEREERBTRIMM AL LH
Gigi Ma is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Sunny Bright B2 o Bt - RBEFHF RS - 52|
under the SFO. MATHAR BN AR E 2R P HEAE

oy
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b. Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

b. RAEBEERONTA

Percentage of

the Company’s
Name of associated Capacity/nature of Number of issued
Name of Director corporation interest shares held  share capital
AKARC BT
EENE e Y B REnttE FEROHEE BRENEDHL
Mrs. Gigi Ma Sunny Bright Beneficial owner and 2 100%
interest of spouse
BRI+ ¥ EnEE AR BER

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the legal and beneficial owner of 1 issued ordinary
share of Sunny Bright, representing 50% of the issued share capital
of Sunny Bright. Mr. Patrick Ma is the legal and beneficial owner of
the other 1 issued ordinary share of Sunny Bright, representing the
remaining 50% of the issued share capital of Sunny Bright. As Mr.
Patrick Ma is the spouse of Mrs. Gigi Ma, Mrs. Gigi Ma is deemed to
be interested in all the interest registered in Mr. Patrick Ma’s name in
Sunny Bright. Accordingly, together with the 50% shareholding
interest in Sunny Bright registered in Mrs. Gigi Ma’s name, Mrs. Gigi
Ma is taken to be interested in 100% of the issued share capital of
Sunny Bright.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the Directors
nor chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii)
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the person
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) or
company which were required to be recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

T ERRRA R BIRD K AERIAX
2N HRR

R2017F3 A31 8 » IBIRB(EHF L HE GG
E3IBEFE 2B MATREE: - THAL(AK
NEIBEBRHESTRABRIN A REAE
WIERBIT ¢

MEEME R2017FE3AHA31H BREER
RAREREITRABI  THIALT BERA
DRI G AR () R B IRIE B 5 R HE
EBIZE XV E 5 2 K 33 ZRZB M AN A #E B2 2 AR
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the #5754 R EAE 1§05 336 (&FTHEE - Baltift
SFO or which were required to be recorded in the register of the  :Z{EFIFTIEAI AN A T &L MAMER A A TN

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 March 2017, other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company, the following
persons/entities have an interest or a short position in the shares or
the underlying shares of the Company which were required to be

Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO: T
Long positions in shares of the Company: RAEAQXTROWEFE -
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s

shares held/

issued

Name Capacity/Nature of interest interested share capital
Ry 2] ARSI

HE B HntE EZROHE RAMNBE DL

Sunny Bright Beneficial Owner 300,000,000 75%

¥ En#aA

Mr. Patrick Ma Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%

and interest of spouse (Note 1)

BTt R EE s R B R (HEE1)

CSI Capital Management Limited Beneficial Owner 20,000,000 5%
BmEAA

CITIC Securities International Interest in a controlled corporation 20,000,000 5%

Company Limited (Note 2)
PRI EBEERAR RyEhhEERRER (HE2)
CITIC Securities Company Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 20,000,000 5%

REEFBRNBR QA

(Note 3)
B (EE3)
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Notes:

1. Such 300,000,000 shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright, a company
beneficially owned as to 50% by Mrs. Gigi Ma and 50% by Mr. Patrick Ma. Mrs.
Gigi Ma is the spouse of Mr. Patrick Ma. Accordingly, Mr. Patrick Ma is deemed
to be interested in all the shares held by Sunny Bright under the SFO.

2. Such 20,000,000 shares are registered in the name of CSI Capital Management
Limited, a company wholly owned by CITIC Securities International Company
Limited. Accordingly, CITIC Securities International Company Limited is deemed
to be interested in all such 20,000,000 shares under the SFO.

3. Such 20,000,000 shares are registered in the name of CSI Capital Management
Limited. As stated in Note 2 above, CITIC Securities International Company
Limited is deemed to be interested in all such 20,000,000 shares under the SFO.
CITIC Securities International Company Limited is wholly owned by CITIC
Securities Company Limited. Accordingly, by virtue of the SFO, CITIC Securities
Company Limited is deemed to be interested in all such 20,000,000 shares to
which CITIC Securities International Company Limited is deemed to be interested
under the SFO.

Save for disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017 and so far as known
to the Directors, no person, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or
any Associated Corporation” above, had notified the Company of an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant Section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers
For the year ended 31 March 2017, the percentage of revenue
derived from our five largest clients in aggregate was less than 1.6%
(2016: 1.5%) of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, purchases from our largest
supplier accounted for approximately 27.5% (2016: 25.3%) of the
Group’s total purchases. For the year ended 31 March 2017, our five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 71.4%
(2016: 63.8%) of the Group’s total purchases.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major suppliers or customers.

Connected Transactions

The “related party transactions” as disclosed in the note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
do not constitute a connected transaction or a continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

There are no other non-exempt connected and continuing connected
transactions during the reporting period.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information available to the Company and the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float required by
the GEM Listing Rules in the reporting period.

Interests of the Compliance Adviser

As at 31 March 2017, as notified by the Company’s compliance adviser,
Shenwan Hongyuan Capital (H.K.) Limited (the “Compliance Advisor”)
except for the compliance adviser agreement entered into between the
Company and the Compliance Adviser dated 23 December 2016,
neither the Compliance Adviser nor any of its directors, employees or
close associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had any
interest in the Group which is required to be notified to the Company
pursuant to Rules 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Compliance of Non-Competition Undertaking

As disclosed in the prospectus of the company dated 30 December
2016, pursuant to the non-competition undertakings set out in the
deed of non-competition dated 19 December 2016, each of our
controlling shareholders, namely, Sunny Bright Group Holdings
Limited. Mrs. Gigi Ma and Mr. Patrick Ma (collectively the “Controlling
Shareholders”), have undertaken to the Company (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) that, amongst other things, each of them is
not or will not, and will procure each of their respective close
associates not to, directly or indirectly, carry on, participate in, be
engaged, interested directly or indirectly, either for their own account
or in conjunction with or on behalf of or for any other person in any
business in competition with or similar to or is likely to be in
competition with the business of the Group upon the Listing of the
Company. Details of the deed of non-competition are set out in the
paragraph headed “Non-Competition Deed” in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the prospectus of the
company dated 30 December 2016.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

The INEDs have reviewed the implementation of the deed of non-
competition and are of the view that the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with their undertakings given under the deed of non-
competition for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Equity-Linked Agreements
Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
28 to 42 of the annual report.

Events after the Reporting Period

There was no significant event occurred after the reporting period.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Ernst & Young
as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
LAl Ka Yee Gigi

Chairlady

Hong Kong, 20 June 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Miricor
Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 84 to 151, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on the matter. For the matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to the matter. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR

Key Audit Matter (Continued)

Key audit matter

BREENEE

AR EIZ =18 (/)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREFTHENAEEEN

Revenue recognition from unutilised prepaid packages

BB EEFEAR B 12 T #E a8 6 M

Prepaid medical aesthetic services not yet rendered are
deferred and reported as deferred revenue in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Upon expiry
of the service period, the unutilised portion of the prepaid
packages are fully recognised in profit or loss. As at 31
March 2017, the carrying amount of deferred revenue
amounted to HK$68,717,000, which represented
approximately 86% of the Group’s total liabilities. During
the year ended 31 March 2017, revenue recognised from
unutilised prepaid packages amounted to HK$2,494,000.

The recognition of revenue from the unutilised portion of
the expired prepaid packages involves significant
management’s judgement to determine the appropriate
timing when the obligations to provide services are
considered to be expired based on the Group’s forfeiture

policy.

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, 5 and 21
to the consolidated financial statements.
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IREE /68,717,000 7T 1§ BEEEBEELS6% °
HZE2017F3A31 BILFE - ABAEMNERRERKE
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AR ESEHNGEMEHRERMF24 -3 - 5K21¢

Our audit procedures included:

° obtaining an understanding of the Group’s revenue
recognition policy in relation to prepaid packages;
and

° testing the internal controls and checking the
calculation of revenue recognised related to the
unutilised portion of the expired prepaid packages
by examining the underlying sales contracts and
related records on a sampling basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B

Other Information included in the Annual Report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine the matter that was of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and is
therefore the key audit matter. We describe the matter in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yen Kai Shun, Catherine.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

20 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEEEREMZEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3 A1 HIEFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FHxT FHEIT
REVENUE W A 5 100,104 83,352
Other income EH AU A 5 1,083 345
Cost of inventories and consumables FEREFEmMAR (9,768) (8,081)
Staff costs BB A (39,341) (29,391)
Property rentals and related expenses WERe KEBERX (9,904) (9,406)
Depreciation e (6,228) (6,174)
Other expenses Hipp (32,437) (8,694)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AT 6 3,509 21,951
Income tax expense FIS Bl 9 (3,450) (3,463)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND AATEBAEMN
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME EERF
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE EEEZEKA
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 4 zE 59 18,488
EARNINGS PER SHARE RRBEBERER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY B8 AEWL
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY &SRZF|
— Basic and diluted — HER G EE 11 HKO0.02 cents HK6.16 cents
0.02 &l 6.16 /81l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE B RAR R &
As at 31 March 2017
M®2017F 3 H31H

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
P FET FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - MR ERE 12 14,016 13,628
Goodwill [EEES 13 4,305 4,305
Deposits e 16 4,980 2,222
Deferred tax assets EETIRE = 23 835 650
Total non-current assets EREBEERE 24,136 20,805
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =& 14 1,704 1,696
Trade receivables S AESEN 15 852 1,190
Prepayments, deposits and BRI - ek 16
other receivables E At e F IR 4,391 3,083
Due from the ultimate holding FEM S AR IR 17
company NAEFRIB = 5
Due from related parties FEUR R8N R FUR 17 - 24,618
Tax recoverable A] U [B] 7 18 843 115
Pledged time deposits BEAEHFER 18 3,253 3,449
Cash and cash equivalents BB 18 135,444 29,251
Total current assets MEVEEBE 146,487 63,307
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables JERE RN 19 887 727
Other payables and accruals H e~ 3508 L EETE A 20 6,730 3,384
Deferred revenue PRI W e 21 68,717 57,388
Provision for reinstatement costs {E1E K 2B s 22 877 433
Tax payable FERTFRIE 537 1,359
Total current liabilities mBAELE 77,748 63,291
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 68,739 16
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEAERRE
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R 92,875 20,821
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBARRE

As at 31 March 2017
M®2017F 3 H31H

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FHET FHIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIBAE 23 1,355 935
Provision for reinstatement costs 1E1E R AN 22 930 1,138
Total non-current liabilities IERBEERE 2,285 2,073
Net assets BEFHE 90,590 18,748
EQUITY R
Issued capital B TR 24 4,000 -
Reserves s 26 86,590 18,748
Total equity EmieE 90,590 18,748
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry
BT L+ BERKE
Director Director
2 E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERRBHR

For the year ended 31 March 2017

HZE2017F3 A1 BIEFE

Share
Issued  premium Merger  Retained Total
capital  account reserve profits equity

BT gy L RE #i
A B e Rl nE
Notes ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$O000  HK$'000  HK$'000

BisE FET TET THT FHT TET
(Note 26)
GEFH)

At 1 April 2015 R2015F 4 A1H - - 5,000 5,860 10,860
Profit for the year and FERNEFE

total comprehensive income 2EBALE

for the year - - - 18,488 18,488
Interim 2016 dividend 2016 FHEIRR S 10 - - - (10,600)  (10,600)
At 31 March 2016 and R2016F3A31H K

1 April 2016 2016F4 A1H - =* 5,000% 13,748* 18,748
Profit for the year and FERMEFE

total comprehensive income ZHIALSE

for the year - - - 59 59
Issue of shares pursuant to REEHEBTRG

the Reorganisation 24() 3,000 (3,000) - - -
Issue of shares under initial BEERAREES

public offering BTG 24(d) 1,000 79,000 - - 80,000
Share issue expenses BIRHER = (8,212) = = (8,212)
Consideration paid for ERBEHBRR

acquisition of subsidiaries in BARNKE

the Reorganisation - = (6) = (5)
At 31 March 2017 R2017%3A31H 4,000 67,788* 4,995* 13,807 90,590
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$86,590,000 * ZEREEPREGAVERRRZGEERERE

(2016: HK$18,748,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 86,590,000 # 7T (2016 4F : 18,748,000/ 7T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MEBRERERX

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHZE2017F3A31HIEFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B aE FERT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R 5 AT v ) 3,509 21,951
Adjustments for: MY S IEFAE
Depreciation e 6 6,228 6,174
Interest income FE WA 5 (241) (297)
Forfeiture of deposits RYIEE 6 2,950 -
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of e IETE - BE
property, plant and equipment NMEEEIEE 6 15 9
12,461 27,837
Increase in inventories FEE N ((3)) (407)
Decrease in trade receivables FEUE ZBR FOR D 338 78
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, i‘EH%ﬂ(IE\ s iR A R
deposits and other receivables W, (38h0) (4,519) 253
Increase in trade payables e ﬁ f’f % AR I N 160 261
Increase in other payables and accruals — E fth fE T BRE 5% % FEET £ AL fi1 3,346 409
Increase in deferred revenue IR ZS N 11,329 5,430
Decrease in the amount due from JE IR B R 152 % N B
the ultimate holding company FIER AL 5 -
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due 7 Lk 2 B
from related parties B (38A0) 24,518 (23,956)
Decrease in pledged time deposits BRI EBFIORD 196 169
Cash generated from operations KEERESLNIRS 47,826 10,074
Interest received BFE 241 297
Hong Kong profits tax paid BREEMNEH (4,765) (1,078)
Net cash flows from operating activities — &&/ZHELNIE S RE FEE 43,302 9,293
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHNEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEEWME - WEMEE
plant and equipment IHE (6,395) (2,182)
Deposits paid for the purchase of items  BEEE  MERZFHEEEHN
of property, plant and equipment BEfES (2,497) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEME - HE MEE
property, plant and equipment B TS R0R = 3
Consideration paid for acquisition of HEAWEBHTEA
subsidiaries in the Reorganisation BHRE (5) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities & EBIFT IR &R 8 %58 (8,897) (2,179
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3 A1 BIEFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FHERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METENRSE
ACTIVITIES RE
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRM TS EUR 24(d) 80,000 -
Share issue expenses BT E R (8,212) -
Dividends paid BERRE = (10,600)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing E&EHES/(FrER)
activities MIRENEF8E 71,788 (10,600)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN BERBESEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #hn, G T8 106,193 (3,486)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning E#2R&RkES
of year EBI1ER 29,251 32,737
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EAXzH4eLES
END OF YEAR Z£EEE 135,444 29,251
ANALYSIS OF BALANCESOF CASH H 4 RESZEYET
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Ay
Cash and bank balances R MRITET 25,903 19,851
Non-pledged time deposits with original 7 & A B R EI| 25 H A8
maturity of less than three months THBGB=EAZ
when acquired A E HER 109,541 9,400
Cash and cash equivalents as stated fra B AR R FT AR
in the consolidated statement of KIR&EEEB
financial position 18 135,444 29,251
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHZE2017F3A31HIEFE

Corporate and Group Information

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office
address of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at Room
1605, 16th Floor, Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
Company’s subsidiaries were principally engaged in the
provision of medical aesthetic services, and the sale of skin care
products in Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the Directors, the immediate holding company
and the ultimate holding company of the Company is Sunny
Bright Group Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 10 January 2017 (the
“Listing”).

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

~EMEEER
ARel/—HERSHSEMAI A E
HEBRAA - ARAIMEMEE
1t & Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681 » Grand Cayman, KY1-1111 -
Cayman Islands © N2 AIA) = B & ¥ i
BN B AR SR EE 77 SR E O
16121605 % °

RRRRBREERAR - MARE MBS
RATENEENEREBEBRXARE
MEE#EEMR

EZRR ARAWERERARRER
BRI AR RHAERAR AR (—RER
REBRZESEMAIZANAR]) -

RABMF 2017 F1 510 BEF BB
ERGERRB([HZA]) 8 iR
(TBIZMR ) Em (T Eml -

MEARZER
ARBEEBHBATZFHBWT

follow:
Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
ARREERER DL
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation issued ordinary
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
Bl AvE:E S ERITEER
£ =E S RAEE B i FEEE
Coresmax Group British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited (‘BVI")
HERAHE 1% REZR
Miricor Beauty Limited BVI US$1 100 - Investment holding
HERAHE 1% REZR
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HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1. RANREEER (#®)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARIZER (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

APBEERET AL
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation issued ordinary
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
AL E R ERITEER
1 EXH BRAHE B B TEXK
Ocean Grand Development Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Provision of management
Limited services
BEERARAA B 5,000,000 7T REEERG
G Max Group Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100  Provision of management
services
B 18T RE R RS
Cos Max Limited* Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Sale of skin care products
BE 1R HEREEM
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of medical
Limited aesthetic services
Bk 18T REBEXTRE
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of medical
(Central) Limited aesthetic services
B 1T RUEBSEZTRHG
CM Technology Development  Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100  Provision of management
Limited services
B 18T RUE R RS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHZE2017F3A31HIEFE

NalREBEER &)
HEA T2 &R ()

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

RAREEREBDH
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation issued ordinary
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ML ER ERITEER
a8 SR RAEE B B TEER
CMIP Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Owner of trademarks
ZREBR AT EBRELHS 1% [EIEZ PN
Cos Max Academy Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of management
services
B 18T REEERE
Miricor Beauty (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Sale of skin care products
EWES (BH)ERDA B 1T HEREEM
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Inactive
(TST) Limited
B 1R BB

REBEBRKEHMEBIRLKE T EBMEE
WRA—BEAREEX -

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the *
Emst & Young global network.

EXRFINNDESRB/HAEEAFE R
AREATELIEAREFEELEH
MZARBMBAR - EZRR/IHE
B ARZHEERREBRILE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE

2.1 Reorganisation and Basis of Presentation 2.1 HEAHEKNEYELE

Pursuant to the reorganisation of the Company in connection
with the Listing (the “Reorganisation”), the Company became
the holding company of the companies now comprising the
Group on 13 September 2016. The companies now comprising
the Group were under the common control of Sunny Bright
Group Holdings Limited (the “Controlling Shareholder”), the
ultimate holding company of the Company, before and after the
Reorganisation. Accordingly, these financial statements have
been prepared by applying the principles of merger accounting
as if the Reorganisation had been completed at the beginning
of the earliest period presented. Details of the Reorganisation
are set out in the section headed “History, Reorganisation and
Corporate Structure — Reorganisation” in the prospectus of the
Company dated 30 December 2016.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 include the results
and cash flows of all companies now comprising the Group
from the earliest date presented or since the date when the
subsidiaries and/or business first came under the common
control of the Controlling Shareholder, where this is a shorter
period. The consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2017 has been prepared to present the
assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries and/or business using
the existing book values from the Controlling Shareholder’s
perspective. No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or
recognise any new assets or liabilities as a result of the
Reorganisation.

BEEAQNAEMBEBENEA(E
1) ARER2016F9 A13 AR AR
EEBERETARNZERAR - REA
A& AEBEKETATRRAZ AT
ERAR AR ([FERARR]) (KRR RA&
IRERR AT S o Bt - MBmER TR
AEHEERETEASF SRR
& BUNEARKF 2V HBEBRYIE T
B o BEASEHAMFIBEHNARRN2016
F12A0BHBENBRER[FEL - =
WM ATIERE] —&n [EH] -

REBREZE2017F3 A31HIEFEN
GEBEMEMEERER  KAER
PHERRGEREREREEAEER
KIETHBARERTE RS HERENKE
MIEB AR &Sk BRI AR R 3
EE 6 B HILA R (ARG B A %) %
BRIEME - REER2017 43 A 31
B &I B REE AR - A
REREMAERREEREEZIMNER
AR/ REBNEEREBE AKEY
EER TR URBAFERER
AEMEMEENTATEERAE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHZE2017F3A31HIEFE

2.2 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE

2.2 Basis of Preparation (Continued) 2.2 WMBIEE ()

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

REEEE)

o8 A A 2 M R Ty AR A R A
ZHEHARA B2 A HERR
MERARRERBASBERSENEE
HEETHREIIER  BRFEFAIIKRE
EZEHIRELEERRL

BEhEMEEkE 2 S EAKNH
BRASER AR ZHA ANRIFEBE
@ LRSS PR RES S B
R TAARMASESKEAREZ
RGZEBRNALAFIREEREE  #
@ WA A RREREENEET
AR 2 BRI -

W= E MBS XAt =182 H A
RZ-HEXIZHELBREL  AEESE
e EERREHRIRET - WEKAE
mhlE s MBARRARESZ AR
S UN:

MASEEREHME AR 25 - 8
RIEER()ZMBAR ZEE(RIERE)
RBE - () EFEZEARE = 2 AR E B K (i)
PSR Ek 2 RETE R Z5 0 RER()
PERREZAAEBE  (\VFREEMAE
B2z RREERK)BEREMELLEE
ZRBHEL - EATEREMEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHZE2017F3A31HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 EEMERAKRER 2 EBTF
Financial Reporting Standards AR

AEBEWRRNZETEHREAER T

BEMEERERZHFT REIETEE

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in the

financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Foreign Currency Transactions

B R &R -

B (ERMBRS

IER HEBHE?

and Advance Consideration? ZBLEY)RE
F225
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of ERRBRELD  URGEERNFXEZ
Share-based Payment Transactions? EVLid ) PEREE?
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments EEBHEEL — R BB L
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts? FAFZIERT ERZEI K2 MITRE
R BHEER
F4RREEHP
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BT HEREED SETA?
E9%
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an BT KR EEL KEEHEBERAE
and HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture* F10HRES PEZEMEELNE
B AERIE 285 EE
(2011 4)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers? BEREREES EEANz?
£155
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from ERMEIREER  BEDBYFHLER
Contracts with Customers? E1552E7] F15HEL LM E?
HKFRS 16 Leases® BRMBaELE  HES
#1657
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative' BE e L wEE
FETR2B
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for EEEHER| Ak I EE 7 EAE
Unrealised Losses' FE12% 2185 HEEE
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property? BB EL REYZEEE
FA0R 218
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs® 2014 E 2016 HEEE B BHEER
2014-2016 Cycle BE FESE BT

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

! 201791 A1 Bz &R 2 FEBE4E

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 2 ;fzm 8FE1 A1 Bz B FEEME
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 3 ?\2201 9OF1 A1 Az &Mm c FEBEAE
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption 4 ;iﬂg 75 TE 25 I A R B 2B B R B AR

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 2018, 5 R2017 E32018FE 1 B1 A v B MA 25

as appropriate E AR A R (ansE A )
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HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 EREMERAKRER 2 EBTF

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of
HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9
from 1 April 2018. The Group performed a high-level
assessment of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. This
preliminary assessment is based on currently available
information and may be subject to changes arising from further
detailed analyses or additional reasonable and supportable
information being made available to the Group in the future. The
Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have
a significant impact on the classification and measurement of its
financial assets. It expects to continue measuring at fair value all
financial assets currently held at fair value.

mEER ()
AEBEAEURST T RCETEEHR
75 3R 4 S RITE W)k EFR RS 2 Y B 1T 4T
fho EHSEBRAEBOREE RN
WS LB — SERMT -

R2014F 98 - EXESEHMAGEMSE
RS HREERFEIRNZERAE - 15
SR IAEENMERBRESEURES
BEFERIE 9 KRB AN B M E LR
BOM I ATMA o L ER|S| A D
HERFE - RERTHREHEENTR
o ANEBBEHA2018F4 51 H B
MEBBREEREIN - REEE
RN EBVBREEREIRETS
BTl o RYLFTENIBIBERBABE
BHEL  WIRTASKBERRER 2HE—
HHEMO M RBEINSIE L BB E R A
BEEMEE AEBIEREMAET BN
MEFUNFEIRE I EHEEHEED
DERFEEELEERATE - B AEHE
BEEUAREEFELBEARE
BERFENICREE -
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BHZE2017F3A31HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 EEMERAKRER 2 EBTF

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS
15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In
June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to
address the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and
licences of intellectual property, and transition. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018. Under HKFRS 15,
an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e., when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has
been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The management of the Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the potential impact of the application of HKFRS
15 and it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of HKFRS 15 until the detailed review is performed by
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 EREMIERAKRER 2 EBTF

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int
27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless
the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced
for the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will
also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the
occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees
will generally recognize the amount of the remeasurement of the
lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
all leases using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17
and distinguish between operating leases and finance leases.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019. Based
on the Group’s undiscounted operating lease commitments of
HK$15,836,000 as set out in note 30 to the financial
statements, the adoption is expected to have an impact on the
financial position and financial performance of the Group and
the detailed assessment is still in progress.

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
amendments will result in additional disclosure to be provided in
the financial statements. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 April 2017.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHZE2017F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBERE

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations other than those under common control
are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date
fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBME @)

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, goodwill and deferred tax assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

U

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Treatment devices 20%
Tools and equipment 25%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Computer equipment 20%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHRERE @)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are all classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and receivables. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation and the loss arising from impairment are
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHRERE @)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHRERE @)

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
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(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs of disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates

that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is

realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax

laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a

legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the

same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

U)

(i)

(i)

from the rendering of services, when the services have
been rendered to clients. Receipts in respect of unutilised
prepaid packages for which the relevant services have not
been rendered are deferred and recognised as deferred
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Any unutilised prepaid packages upon expiry of
the service period are fully recognised in profit or loss;

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the clients,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold; and

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Dividends

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and article of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currency transactions

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE

3. EAREETHE MER

3. Significant Accounting Judgement and

Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue recognition from unutilised prepaid packages
The recognition of revenue from the unutilised portion of the
expired prepaid packages involves significant management’s
judgement to determine the appropriate timing when the
obligations to provide services are considered to be expired
based on the Group’s forfeiture policy and hence the
recognition criteria for the related revenue are met in
accordance with the accounting policy for revenue recognition
in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of deferred revenue
amounted to HK$68,717,000 (2016: HK$57,388,000). During
the year ended 31 March 2017, revenue recognised from
unutilised prepaid packages amounted to HK$2,494,000 (2016:
HK$2,019,000).
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Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from change or improvements in the provision of
services, or from a change in the market demand for the service
output of the asset, the expected usage of the asset, the
expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance of
the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. Adjustment of depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment are different from previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period based on changes in circumstances.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
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HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE

Operating Segment Information

The Group has one reportable operating segment, namely the
non-surgical medical aesthetic services segment, and is
principally engaged in the provision of medical aesthetic
services and the sale of skin care products in Hong Kong.
Information reported to the Group’s management, for the
purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment,
focuses on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the
Group’s resources are integrated and therefore no discrete
operating segment financial information is available. Accordingly,
no operating segment information is presented.

Information about geographical areas

Since all of the Group’s revenue and profit were generated from
the provision of medical aesthetic services and the sale of skin
care products in Hong Kong and all of the Group’s non-current
assets were located in Hong Kong during the year, no
geographical segment information in accordance with HKFRS 8
Operating Segments is presented.

Information about major clients

Since no revenue derived from sales to a single client of the
Group has individually accounted for over 10% of the Group’s
total revenue during the year, no information about major clients
in accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is presented.
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5. Revenue and Other Income 5 WARHEAMUA
Revenue represents the value of services rendered; and the net WAEFIRERENEE  REEEm
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and BEMNZEZE SHNBREERE ST
trade discounts. An analysis of revenue and other income is as Mo WAREMRABDHT AT -
follow:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue KA
Treatment services BEERRTS 90,074 74,081
Skin care products EEER 4,681 3,842
Medical consultation services BB RS 677 613
Prescription and dispensing of BE 75 M Be 2ERR 75
medical products 2,178 2,797
Revenue recognised from KB AREAEMNREE
unutilised prepaid packages A& 2,494 2,019
100,104 83,352
Other income Hig A
Bank interest income HRITH WA 241 297
Insurance compensation REEEEES 725 5
Others Hip 117 43
1,083 345
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6. Profit before Tax

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

6. BREEADG A

AN BIRR B AT A T R T YRR R

/i
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Minimum lease payments under RIBEKERE 2 &K
operating leases iEROENEN 8,152 7,649
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EEEHME X (TEREEEHE
Directors’ remuneration (note 7)): (FF&E7)) -
Salaries, bonuses and other e AL N EAth 2B
allowances 35,123 26,226
Retirement benefit scheme RIREFIET B
contributions (defined (FEaftaata)
contribution scheme) 847 747
35,970 26,973
Auditor’s remuneration % EREN BN & 880 132
Listing expenses rFmEA 14,926 -
Depreciation e 6,228 6,174
Forfeiture of deposits RUES 2,950 -
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of  H& “Hiss ¥ - M= M EE
property, plant and equipment HE &R 15 9
Foreign exchange differences, net SN E ERRRE - 644
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7. Directors’ Remuneration 7. EEWE
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the BB TR XERE S FmRA - FF
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock N B E ) 25383(1)@) ~ (b) * (©) & () 1§ &
Exchange, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong RElHRBE2 DR (BERESEN CER
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure WER)EBEZAEEERMLUOT :
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follow:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Fees we 153 -
Other emoluments: HuNe -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e AL NREET 3,200 2,400
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3 ¢k 1@ 51 £t 2
(defined contribution scheme) (EREETED 18 18
3,218 2,418
3,371 2,418
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIUFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RERNMBILIERITES IR
during the year were as follow: W :
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHIT
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David* S0 R 2 A 51 -
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo* ELER AN A 51 -
Mr. Li Wai Kwan* FEBERE" 51 -
153 -
Appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company * HR2016F 12 19 R EZEAARR]
on 19 December 2016. KB FEMITES -
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7.

(a)

(b)

Directors’ Remuneration (Continued) 7. EEMe
Independent non-executive directors (Continued) (@) BIUFMITES(H)
There were no other emoluments payable to the FA - WEE(E b EN TIE3E
independent non-executive directors during the year HITEE S (2016F : E) -
(2016: Nil.
Executive directors (b) BITES
Certain of the Directors received remuneration from the ETEECAERAEEETHE
subsidiaries now comprising the Group for their AR EEEZERZEMB AT
appointment as directors of these subsidiaries or their ERIEAZENBARIE TN
capacity as employees of these subsidiaries. The Bl - BuEEHNFHIMU T (BEH
remuneration of each of these Directors set out below P B AR ERERAEE) -
includes those recorded in the financial statements of the
subsidiaries.
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind contributions Total
2o -1 RIKER
e RENERN HEEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL THL FHL FHL
Year ended 31 March 2017 HE2017F3ANALEE
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi* s Tk equ - 3,200 18 3,218
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry** BERLE" - - - -
- 3,200 18 3,218
Year ended 31 March 2016 BZ2016 53 AN HLFE
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi Byt - 2,400 18 2,418
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry SERLE - - - -
- 2,400 18 2,418

Appointed as a director of the Company on 6 July 2016 and re-

designated as an executive director on 19 December 2016.

ok

Appointed as a director of the Company on 25 July 2016 and re-

designated as an executive director on 19 December 2016.

* 2016 F7 A6 BEZTARRAEN
EEWR2016FE 12 A19B AT AH
TESE-

* HR2016F7 A5 HEZ T AR AR

MEEWR2016F 12 A19B AT A
WITES -
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7. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued) 7. EEME @)
(b) Executive directors (Continued) (b) BMITES(E)
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group FA o AEEBEREAES AT
to the Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining TBe - fEAIAREB S INA
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2016: REB% 2 BE BB 1 E (2016
Nil). F:5)
There were no arrangements under which a Director RERN - WELREEREXRE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the E AT AT B & &9 % BE (2016 4F -
year (2016: Ni). e
8. Five Highest Paid Employees 8. hEmxmEmEES
The five highest paid employees included one (2016: one) AEESHHES 81 — % (2016 F :
Director, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 7 —Z)VEE FEERR AN ET o
above. Detalils of the remuneration of the remaining four (2016: HePU% (201645 - UR) IFEEHSH
four) non-director highest paid employees are as follow: R B FHBIES T -
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FHEIT
Salaries and allowances e KRR 13,432 9,865
Performance related bonuses BREFRBETILA 203 150
Retirement benefit scheme contributions Rk 7&E FI 5T 214 2% 68 72
13,703 10,087
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Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued) 8. hH#

The number of the non-director highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follow: :

===

o MES &)
IEESSTEMESHTMN TUTE

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000

ZZ 1,000,000 7T

1,000,001 & 7L E 1,500,000 7T
2,000,001 7T % 2,500,000 %8 7T
2,500,001 7% 7T 2 3,000,00078 7T
3,000,001 & 7T & 3,500,000 % 7T
4,000,001 7T 4,500,000 % 7T
4,500,001 %75 & 5,000,000 7% 7T

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
— 1

1 -

= 1

— 1

1 —_

1 1

1 _

4 4

Income Tax Expense

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in

9. FIBHR

RIEFSREMNEBRZESRIIRE
B ASERARNHEREREBERX
HERMERPMEH -

FR BEBELANGETEIFEND
1£16.5% (2016 5 : 16.5%) {EH & 7 7

Hong Kong during the year. 1SR -
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET

Current B A

— Charge for the year — FREH 3,320 3,461
— Overprovision in prior years — BEFERBERE (105) -
Deferred tax (note 23) IEXEFIA (52 23) 235 2
Total tax charge for the year FRBIAL H AR5 3,450 3,463
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9. Income Tax Expense (Continued) 9. FEHF= &)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before B EB AT ERER IS MEtE R
tax at the Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax expense at the MESHEEAERERHRAENT
Group’s effective tax rate is as follow: E BREBRIT ¢
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Profit before tax FRELRT R 3,509 21,951
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% AT K 16.5% 51 i 579 3,622
Adjustments in respect of current tax BT FEEEIFIIA
of previous years YEH A% (105) -
Income not subject to tax BAERBA (53) (49
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 3,199 198
Temporary differences utilised from B BETRENE R ETE
previous periods = (96)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods @1 BifS 2 FLIE &8 - (130)
Others HAth (170) (82)
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate RAEEERBMERTEHRBES H 3,450 3,463
10. Dividend 10. K&
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Interim dividend HHEARR R = 10,600
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11. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary 1. AAAIEBEEREFEEAEGS
Equity Holders of the Company A 22 A
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based FREKRABNHESEETIRERNEZ K
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders NSRRI A A A B 1R Y& 1) 59,000
of the Company of HK$59,000 (2016: HK$18,488,000), and BT (2016 4F : 18,488,000 7T) R F N
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of BT BRI T 19 2322,191,781
322,191,781 (2016: 300,000,000) in issue during the year, on % (2016 4F : 300,000,000 f% ) 5t & 15 i
assumption that the Reorganisation had been completed on 1 (REBHE N 2015F4 A1 BZHARK
April 2015. ®) -
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue HZE2016F M2017F3 A1 HILFE -
during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016. AREEWVEABEBENWE DBITY
12. Property, Plant and Equipment 12. W% - BE L& E
Leasehold Fumiture ~ Treatment Tools and Office Motor ~ Computer
improvements  and fixtures devices  equipment  equipment vehicles  equipment Total

BENEEE  HERRE RERRE IARRE HOERR AE EERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
TR TET Fhn TR TR TR TR TER

31 March 2017 01753731 A

At 31 March 2016 and R016EIANER

1 April 2016: 01654718

Cost A 9,740 1,376 22,229 1,375 118 2,023 2,123 39,184
Accumulated depreciation  Z3f#7E (8,436) (917) (13,181) (875) (80) (1,040) (1,027) (25,556)
Net carrying amount KE3E 1,304 459 9,048 500 38 1,183 1,09 13,628

At 1 Apr 2016, net of Ho016E4A18 -

accumulated depreciation  BIRETTE 1,304 459 9,048 500 38 1,183 1,096 13,628
Addtions e 676 129 5,507 104 18 - 197 6,631
Depreciation provided duing  ERFTERE

the year (1,534) (213) (3:357) (244) 21) (445) (14 (6,228)
Disposal/wits-off e /HisH - @ - () 1) - (1) (15)

At31 March 2017, netof R 2017E3A31R -

accumulated depreciation 21K 23H7E 446 313 11,198 359 34 738 868 14,016
At31 March 2017: R2017E3ASIE

Cost i 10416 1429 21,736 1,431 125 2,223 2,207 45,657
Accumulated depreciation  Z:t7E (9,970 (1,056) (16,538) (1,072) 1) (1,485) (1,429) (31,641)
Net canying amount BEFA 446 31 11,198 359 34 738 868 14016
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12. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 12. W% - BE Ma&kiE @)
Leasehold Fumture  Treatment  Toolsand (Office Motor ~ Computer
improvements  and fixtures devices  equipment  equipment vehicles  equipment Totdl

HENRRE GRREE  RESA TIARGE BOERE g ERRE it
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00
TR TAL TR TAT TR ThR TAT TR

31 March 2016 2016534318

At 1 Aprl 2015: ROO5E4R1R
Cost AR 9,416 1,348 20,854 1267 17 2223 2,057 37,82
Acoumulated depreciation  3tH7E (6,984) (702) (10012) (670) (60) (59) (627) (19,650)
Net carmying amount EEYAE 243 646 10842 507 57 1628 1430 17632

At 1 April 2015, net of R2015E4R1H

acoumulated depreciation B BT E 2432 646 10842 597 57 1628 1430 17632
Addions HE 38 4 1599 13 3 - 71 2,182
Depreciation provided during FRTE% &

the year (1,456) (225) (3,399) (229) 22 (445) (404 (6,174)
Disposal e - @) - K] - - () (12)

A3t March 2016, netof 201653318

accumulated depreciation BB ZiHTE 1,304 459 9,048 500 38 1,183 1,09% 13,628
At 31 March 2016: Ro16E3ASIA
Cost A 9,740 1,376 2229 1375 18 2,023 2,123 30,184
Accumulated depreciation  E3tH7E (8.436) ©17) (13,181) 875) (80) (1,040) (1,027 (25,556)
Net carrying amount EEFE 1,304 459 9,048 500 38 1,183 1,09 13,628
13. Goodwill 13, P5&
HK$'000
FH&T
Cost and carrying amount at 1 April 2015, R2015F 4 418 201643 HA31H -
31 March 2016, 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 2016F4A1H 20173 A31HZ
AR R BREE 4,305
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13. Goodwill (continued)

On 26 December 2009, the Group acquired the business of
Health Max Laser and Medical Skin Care Limited (“Health
Max”), a company controlled by Mr. Lai Ying, the sibling of Ms.
Lai Ka Yee Gigi. Health Max was engaged in the provision of
medical aesthetic services.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combination has been
allocated to the non-surgical medical aesthetic service cash-
generating unit of HK$4,305,000 for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by senior
management covering a 24-month period. Assumptions were
used in the value in use calculation. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based its
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

° Revenue is estimated based on the business trend in the
industry of medical aesthetic operation, historical average
spending per client and client cover, taking into account
the number of treatment rooms in each medical aesthetic
centre, centre locations, market conditions and economic
outlook.

° Cost of inventories sold is estimated based on the rate of
increase in revenue and the expected market conditions.

° The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
beyond the 24-month period is 3% for each reporting
period.

o The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the cash-generating unit. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 15% for each
reporting period.

13.

HE®)

F2000F 12 A26 H » AN B U iE 15
BARBEEEERARQA(E
B REFPRHEEZXARY - RA
BY ML THRBRBILERFE -

EERENR

XS E 0TS EER 584,305,000 7T
EEFMUEBEXETRBACELSN
LAETTRERIE, ©

ReELBEMMA ORI ERER
BE RAENKSREEELEN24
BAMBEEZRERERAEE - &£
AEERABERERRER - TR T
EEERBEERSREBIETHER
ERIF 2 SRR R -

e KREERBEXTEEITENER
B% BESEEEFHHEERE
FEZE (K hEBEXTHL
MZERERE RUE - MR REH
Al ) TR

e CDHEFERAERKFEERRR
BHITm ORI TEET
o IEET24E A ARE & REFTAIE

RRSHMEME3% °

o RARBAFRERMASELE
i ARER - BEREFED PR
REITIRE BERE R 15% -
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14. Inventories 14, &
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHEIT
Skin care products EEEMR 229 293
Consumables and other supplies JEFEm M E A 1,475 1,403
1,704 1,696
. 57 =,
15. Trade Receivables 8 5 IR
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHEIT
Credit card receivables ERRERGRE 851 1,190
Others Hih 1 -
852 1,190
The Group’s trading terms with its clients are mainly on cash EEEEEPAORSBREFERRS

and/or credit card settlement while the trading terms with its
corporate customers are on credit. The credit period is generally
2 to 30 days for credit card settlement for the respective
financial institutions and up to 60 days for corporate customers.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE

15. Trade Receivables (Continued) 15. B EINFTA (&)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables, based on the invoice B S EWFIELEE A R T
date, is as follow: T
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Within 1 month —fEAR 852 1,169
1 to 3 months —ZE==f@A - 21
852 1,190
An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not RARAERHEERENE S EWIE
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as BRERDITAAT -
follow:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Neither past due nor impaired B e HA MR (E 852 1,104
1 to 3 months past due wmH—=={@A - 86
852 1,190
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired were #5580 HA T RLOR (B B JE WGBS Kol T 2R
related to a number of receivables due from financial institutions BSREE N ERREE LI G
in respect of credit card settlements and corporate customers R EERF ©

for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivable that was past due but not impaired was related to a B e SR E N R GRIE S k. — R
financial institution that has a good track record with the Group. AEBBERUTHELEHENSREE - R
Based on past experience, the Directors are of the opinion that BRAKR ZE5RE ARNEEE=R
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of the WEEREE  AEEERDEEUR
balance as there has not been a significant change in credit U E - WBEMNZFERITRAER
quality and the balance is still considered fully recoverable. 1 o
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16. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables  16. iﬁﬁ RIE - RS I R U R
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Prepayments TERTRIE 1,535 723
Deposits e 5,129 4,578
Deposits paid for the purchase of items of ~ ZEEY) 2 « #e28 I 2545
property, plant and equipment BMZEe 2,497 -
Other receivables H At R K 210 4
9,371 5,305
Analysed into: DT A
Non-current portion IEmEN D 4,980 2,222
Current portion REhEL D 4,391 3,083
9,371 5,305
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. LA FEEMESBSORE - Lt
Financial assets included in the above balances relate to K& B E P MOl B HE R A0 810 JE UK
receivables for which there was no recent history of default. SKIE ©
17. Balances with the Ultimate Holding Company 17, BRI AR MEER E
and Related Parties
An analysis of the amounts due from the ultimate holding EW SRR AR RBEEFFIEI NN
company and related parties is as follow: ™~
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Due from the ultimate holding company B U &% 4R 12 A% A | - 5
Due from related parties U A T 5108 - 24,518
None of the amounts due from the ultimate holding company BN B ARIR AR A B N BB T B PUB R &
and related parties is neither past due nor impaired. The @Hﬂ&/ﬁﬂﬁ s eREES
financial assets included in the above balances related to T BR 4 A /K 40 S B FEUR FROE o

receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
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17. Balances with the Ultimate Holding Company
and Related Parties (Continued)
Particulars of the amount due from the ultimate holding

company are as follow:

31 March 2017

17' /\EX\\g

PERUR B M BE D) R

&)
E%?%ﬁ% I ERIEHBOT ¢

2017463 A31H

Maximum
amount
outstanding

during
31 March the year 1 April
2017F FRERER 2016 F
3H31H EEEH 4A1H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FTET TET
Sunny Bright Group Holdings HFRAZR B R A
Limited - 5 5
31 March 2016 20163 A31H
Maximum
amount
outstanding
31 March during the year 1 April
2016 F FAMKER 20154
3H31H S dc 4H1H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHBT T
Sunny Bright Group Holdings NI B R A
Limited 5 5 5

2017 F / EYEREBBR AR

131



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I RAR A

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE2017F3R31HIEFE

17. Balances with the Ultimate Holding Company

17, BRI AE R B8 T AR

and Related Parties (Continued) (&)

Particulars of the amounts due from related parties are as

follow:

31 March 2017

FEU B T S RHE AT

20174 3HA31H

Due from related parties
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi*

Mr. Lai Ying*™

Cos Max Holdings Limited"
Cheer Beauty Group Limited™"

Sunny Bright Medical Limited”
Solar Solution Development

Limited”
Jing Ying (HK) Limited"

FEWERESRIA

Ry L+

B

Cos Max Holdings Limited"

Cheer Beauty Group
Limited™”*

Sunny Bright Medical
Limited"

Solar Solution Development
Limited"

Jing Ying (HK) Limited"
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17. Balances with the Ultimate Holding Company 17. ERFGER AR NEEF Eer
)

and Related Parties (Continued) (&
Particulars of the amounts due from related parties are as FEW B :E A RIEFEET - (8)

follow: (Continued)

31 March 2016 20163 A31H

Maximum
amount
outstanding

31 March during the year 1 April
2016 F FAMAKER 20154
3A31H Bt 4A1H
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Due from related parties FEURRAE 5 7K IE
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi* BNy 2+ 23,938 23,938 -
Mr. Lai Ying** B 332 614 471
Cos Max Holdings Limited” Cos Max Holdings Limited” 87 87 82
Cheer Beauty Group Limited™” Cheer Beauty Group
Limited™ 9 9 9
Sunny Bright Medical Limited” Sunny Bright Medical
Limited" 20 20 -
Solar Solution Development Solar Solution Development
Limited” Limited” 21 21 -
Jing Ying (HK) Limited" Jing Ying (HK) Limited" 111 111 -
24,518 562
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi is a Director of the Company * BYmML T ARNAGESE
Mr. Lai Ying is the sibling of Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi ** Sy E) (kequut:0) 2
A These related companies were jointly controlled by Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi A REBEATARYIME T REZEREE (R
and Mr. Ma Ting Keung Patrick, the spouse of Ms. Kai Ka Yee Gigi. I AT EE) L FEEE -
AN This related company was controlled by Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi. AA ZBEAR AR ML tTiEs -
The above balances with related parties are non-trade in nature, NEEBEERFNESREIEEHHEE -
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. EIN RS NEETFEENE -
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18. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Time  18. & KIS EE WM D KET

Deposits HATF 3K
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER T
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTH R 25,903 19,851
Time deposits TEHTFR 112,794 12,849
138,697 32,700
Less: Pledged time deposits, pledged for 8 : #tZ A~ = EEEE MmiEM
credit card facilities I 5E BAfF R (3,253) (3,449
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 135,444 29,251
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RTE4SRERETERA R Er T
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods BRI = BRI B o T HIE SR A S E A
of between 1 month and 12 months depending on the BESERAH—Z+—@AARKREA
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at THIERFR S - AR R TS
the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances and time I E G EmE MR R SR T
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent SR1T o
history of default.
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19.

20.

Trade Payables 19. B Z R FIA
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FABT
Third party suppliers F=HHER 887 727
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RIFER - EZEMNFBIRBEZEH
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follow: RERER DT T
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Within 1 month 1EA R 887 727
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and generally have EHRNHREBEIE  FHEEH—K
an average settlement term of 30 days. A30H8 o
Other Payables and Accruals 20. EMuEfF AN IERTE A
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Other payables and accruals HEMENFIAERETER 6,579 3,114
Receipt in advance TEMFRIE 151 270
6,730 3,384
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average HENRBIE  FHUNZIEAE—
term of 1 to 3 months. E=@EA -
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21. Deferred Revenue 21, EEW =
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Deferred revenue PEIE U =5 68,717 57,388
The movements in deferred revenue are as follows: EEW S EEINT -
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At the beginning of the year F7) 57,388 51,958
Receipts from sales of one-off HE—RMER FEER
treatments, treatment packages and FBNIREeHEIFERE
prepaid cash coupons, net 105,002 82,383
Revenue recognised upon IR 12 O Rl s
the provision of services (90,074) (74,081)
Revenue recognised upon HEEREEERRE
the sales of products (1,105) (853)
Revenue recognised from RERERBMANERZ WS
unutilised prepaid packages (2,494) (2,019)
At the end of the year FR 68,717 57,388
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22. Provision for Reinstatement Costs
The provision for reinstatement costs represents management’s
best estimate of the Group’s liabilities of the costs of
dismantling and removing the leasehold improvements and
restoring the leased premises which they are currently located

22. EERAER

PR BR A AT o

back to their original state of condition if and when the Group

vacates these leased premises.

EERABEHREEREEY RSB R
WEBHERE TR NRMAEEE LA
HENESEEREMEE RGN

HK$’000
FHIT

At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 M2015F 418 - 201643 A31H
and 1 April 2016 K& 20169F 4 A1H 1,571
Additional provision EEINE S 236
At 31 March 2017 7201743 A31H 1,807
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT

Analysed into: V=1

Non-current portion IEmENEB D 930 1,138
Current portion mENE D 877 433
1,807 1,571
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23. Deferred Tax 23, RIEFIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the EEMBEERGBERERNNES WO T -

year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets FEEBIEEE
Depreciation Losses
in excess available

of related  for offsetting
depreciation against future

allowance taxable profits Total
BEEEITE WRAEEHERR
BEOTE ERFEANERE @gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FTAT FAT
At 1 April 2015 M2015F 4B 1H 425 782 1,207
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FERFA (B B) BN
to profit or loss during the year HEERI 1A
(note 9) (PHE9) 225 (640) (315)
At 31 March 2016 and R201643A31 B R
1 April 2016 20164 A1H 650 242 892
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRFA (B B) B
to profit or loss during the year HRAERIE
(note 9) (Fft5E9) 171 (242) (71)
At 31 March 2017 PH2017%F3A31H 821 - 821
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23. Deferred Tax (Continued) 23. IRETIE (1)
Deferred tax liabilities EEMEAE
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related
depreciation
I ARBTE
WiITERE
HK$’000
T
At 1 April 2015 R2015F 4 A1 H 1,490
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FERFF ABRAELRIE
during the year (note 9) (FfzE9) (313)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 M20165F3 A31 ARk
20164 A1H 1,177
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FRHIR B ERAIELERIE
during the year (note 9) (FF5E9) 164
At 31 March 2017 R2017E3H31H 1,341
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and BENIHR ETELEHBELERARE
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of BRA MBI N ES c U THMA
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax EE SRS T = MR R IE LS
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised ?/.:.\ B TR R FE R Y
in the consolidated statement of BIERIEEEF
financial position 835 650
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised 75’\ A ISR R R
in the consolidated statement of ELEHIEBEFE
financial position (1,355) (935)
(520) (285)
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23. Deferred Tax (Continued)

At 31 March 2016, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$1,468,000, subject to the agreement by the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. At 31 March 2017, the Group also had
deductible temporary differences of HK$4,980,000 (2016:

HK$3,943,000).

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
deductible temporary differences of HK$5,000 (2016:
HK$5,000) as it is not considered probable that taxable profits

23. IRIERIE (1)
M2016F3H31H  NEBBEAEBEAL
FRIEE 181,468,000/ 7T « MEEREBFHS
BRE - AERBAIKHEHIREIEAT
HIAR R FER T m A © FR201743H31H -
7 £ 3] A] 40 RS = 58 454,980,000 7T
(2016 FF : 3,943,000/7T) °

I 4% 5t A] H0 75 T B = 58 5,000 %8 7T (2016
& 500080 MRIELEHEEE 5
R A R AT B8 78 18 BR i 0 ) AT AR A

will be available against which the above items can be utilised. FatzER -

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

R B [ EL e BRI A S/, 30 8 B 5 )

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. TS 2 -
24. Share Capital 24, IR
Shares % 13
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHEIT
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000 Bz &% 0.018 7T
HK$0.01 each SRR 20,000 -
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
400,000,000 ordinary shares of 400,000,000 J&#[%0.01 57T
HK$0.01 each SRR 4,000 -
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24. Share Capital (Continued)
Shares (Continued)
A summary of movements in the Company’s authorised and

issued share capital during the period from 6 July 2016 (date of

24, AR ()

13 (&)

RAEEH2016%F7 A6 8 (GEA B ER)
F2017F 3 A31 HAAE RE#HITHRA

incorporation) to 31 March 2017 is as follow: ZEEBBMnT
Number of Nominal
ordinary value of
shares ordinary shares
TEREB ZiEREE
Notes HK$’'000
ihg=s FHT

Authorised: EE

Upon incorporation on R2016F 7 A6 H

6 July 2016 EERLIIBAVALS @) 38,000,000 380
Increase in authorised 5 TE B AN B

share capital (b) 1,962,000,000 19,620
At 31 March 2017 R201743 A 31 A 2,000,000,000 20,000

Issued and fully paid: ERTRHBE :

Upon incorporation on R2016F 7 A6 H

6 July 2016 EERLIIBAVAL S (@) 2 -
Issue of shares pursuant to RIEEAZEITRD

the Reorganisation (©) 299,999,998 3,000
Issue of shares under initial RIBEAARESE

public offering TR (d) 100,000,000 1,000
At 31 March 2017 M201763H31H 400,000,000 4,000

Notes: BiaE -

(@) On 6 July 2016, the Company was incorporated with authorised share (a) MH2016F7 A6 8 » KABIFEML - JAE
capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 ordinary shares of [i% 7 /380,000 7% 7T + % 438,000,000 % &
HK$0.01 share. On the same date, 1 ordinary share of HK$0.01 was REE.O1E TN - KRB - 1RER
issued and allotted to Mr. Ma Ting Keung Patrick and another 1 ordinary EHE0.01 BT ERREHITREERETHE
share of HK$0.01 was issued and allotted to Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi. WAEHE  MBIMBREBREMBEOIEITHE

BB BT AR TR mA L o
(o) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 19 December 2016, the (o) RIER2016F 12 A19 R BIBREBRER -

authorised share capital of the Company was increased from HK$380,000
to HK$20,000,000 by the creation of 1,962,000,000 additional ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each, ranking pari passu in all respects with the

existing shares of the Company.

3% 38 12 5% 1,962,000,000 i% & A% M {E0.01 78
THEBR(ESHEARERNZERSE
) - AR RETEMAH 380,000 T E
20,000,000 7T ©
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24. Share Capital (Continued)

25.

Shares (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(c) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 19 December 2016,
299,999,998 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued, allotted and
credited as fully paid at par by way of capitalisation from the share
premium account to the holder of shares whose name appeared on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on 19
December 2016 in proportion to their respective shareholding. This
allotment and capitalisation issue were conditional on the share premium
account being credited as a result of the placing of new shares in
connection with the Company’s initial public offering as detailed in note (d)
below.

(d) In connection with the Company’s initial public offering, 100,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$0.8 each
per share for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$80,000,000. Dealing in the shares of the Company on GEM of The
Stock Exchange commenced on 10 January 2017.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in
note 25 to the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of attracting and retaining the best available
personnel, providing additional incentive to eligible participants,
and promoting the success of the business of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
Directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, and any consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners and service providers of any member of the Group.
The Scheme was approved and adopted by the shareholders
of the Company on 19 December 2016 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
maximum number of shares available for issue was 40,000,000,
representing 10% of the shares of the Company in issue.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE

25.

20.

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company to each participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the total shares of the Company in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such
date on or after the date on which the option is granted as the
Directors may determine in granting the option and expiring at
the close of business on such date as the Directors may
determine in granting the option but in any event shall not
exceed 10 years from the date of grant (which is the date of
offer of grant if the offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 7 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is
HK$1.0.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
Directors provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (j)
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein during the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 87 of the
financial statements.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents reserves arising from the
Reorganisation.
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27. Related Party Transactions 27. FIER R 5
(@ In addition to the transactions and balances detailed @ BAFBHREEMISAFIRARZ
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had 5 NSRRI - REBRFERNERE
the following material transaction with a related party ATEUTERZS :
during the year:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&ET FHT
Listing expenses X
— Arelated company* — —[EEEQR> 1,549 -
*  The spouse of certain Director has significant * AETEESNRBYEHBEENA
influence over the related company. EEAFE -
(o) Compensation of key management personnel of the b) AEEBFEEEABNF(B1E
Group, including Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in B ImERM 7 FTIRBERNESEHE)
note 7 to the financial statements, is as follow: m
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Short term employee benefits mEEERF 6,179 3,786
Post-employment benefits BEE 2R A 69 54
6,248 3,840
28. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 28. irE e MERMN T

Flows

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group entered into
a rental agreement in respect of its office premise under
operating lease. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
rental agreement, the Group is required to restore the site to
the conditions as stipulated in the rental agreement.
Accordingly, the Group had accrued and capitalised the
estimated restoration cost of HK$236,000 when such
obligations arose.
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29.

30.

31.

Pledge of Assets

Details of the Group’s credit card facilities granted by financial
institutions, which are secured by the assets of the Group, are
included in note 18 to the financial statements.

Operating Lease Arrangements

As lessee

The Group leases its medical aesthetic centres, office premises,
a car park space and certain office equipment under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from 1 month to 3 years. Leases for office
equipment are negotiated for a term of 5 years.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follow:

29.

30.

BEEEH
HEREBRTASENEAREESE
ETBRAEBEEFERR  FHEIARNK
BIE R MIFE18 ©

e ERHE

EREBA
AEERECERERHAAETHRE
ERPL - PAE - BEHRETHRA
=i - EE - ARWENBRNT
—BAZ=% - EHET  BWHAER
BOESATF -

REBREHR - NERERET A BEHL
LHEE TSR B2 KK KDEN
HE @R

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHET

Within one year —FNR 8,526 7,688
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EFEERF (REERMT) 7,310 7,234
15,836 14,922

Commitments
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note

31.

HOE
BT BRI 30 AT B s

30 above, the Group had the following capital commitments at BN REBERBERREATHER
the end of the reporting period: HHE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Contracted, but not provided for: EETA) - BREME -
Property, plant and equipment Y B R&E 400 -
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32. WERETMEMIA
K& RRBER S 0SB T ARE

32. Financial Instruments by Category
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follow: BT
Financial assets SREE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loans and receivables: Bk ERGRIE
Trade receivables H 5 WA 852 1,190
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATEFIE ~ 124 R HMEY
deposits and other receivables (note 16) B S ELE E= (KizE16) 5,339 4,582
Due from the ultimate holding company e =S 2 NI B = 5
Due from related parties JE WY B & 5 SRR - 24,618
Pledged time deposits BT HTR 3,253 3,449
Cash and cash equivalents ReERkBFEEY 135,444 29,251
144,888 62,995
Financial liabilities eRMER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REHAGTEN SR AE
Trade payables B SN RIA 887 127
Financial liabilities included in other s AE b e~ F0E N fEE T B A
payables and accruals MNerAaE 3,292 621
4,179 1,348
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33. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follow:

3B, eRMTENAFERAFES

R
AERSHTANRAERATE(TE
FEAREIATENKEE M -

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AFE

HK$’000
FET

2016 2017 2016
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TR TAT

Financial assets ERMEE
Deposits, non-current portion %4 + IERENZE D

2,222 2,204 1,923

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged time deposits, trade receivables,
trade payables, the current portion of financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals and amounts
due from the ultimate holding company and related parties
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of deposits have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities.

Fair value hierarchy
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no financial
assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value.
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and SRIERE IR B IE RIBUER

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise pledged
time deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, trade payables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals and amounts due from
the ultimate holding company and related parties.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of Directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Credit risk
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Details in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade receivables are disclosed in note 15 to these
financial statements. The credit risk of the Group’s other
financial assets, which comprise pledged time deposits and
cash and cash equivalents, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and amounts due
from the ultimate holding company and related parties, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Liquidity risk

In order to manage liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has
adequate financial resources in meeting its financial obligations.
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 34. 2EtEREIEBEREGE ®)
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESEE)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the NEBRHFEEKR  BIESDORITER
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual HERFEDTHERR MR T
undiscounted payments, was as follow:
Less than 1 year
—FR
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables B S ENFIE 887 27
Financial liabilities included in other ST AR AN FIE K e E A
payables and accruals HEemBE 3,292 621
4,179 1,348

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to the shareholders, return capital to the
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March
2016.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of the
shareholders’ equity.
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35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  35. 2K & 2 B f& ik R =

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follow:

BRAARRRN|MEMRO BN KE
FEZIET

2017
HK$’000
FBxT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AT ZEE =
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other receivables H b pE IR 136
Bank balances IRITHE 75,634
Total current assets MEVEEBAE 75,770
CURRENT LIABILITY REBBE
Due to a subsidiary FES —RIKY B A 558 18,772
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 56,998
Net assets BEFE 56,998
EQUITY xR
Issued capital BT 4,000
Reserves (note a) 1 (Fsta) 52,998
Total equity HEmAE 56,998
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35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

(Continued)
Note:

(@) A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follow:

35. KRBl ZWBARREK @)

Wi

@  ARBZEHEEBELT

Share
premium Accumulated Total
account loss equity
R RER ZitEE EFAH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FHT
At 6 July 2016 (date of incorporation) H2016F7 A6 H (AREIKIZAH) = = =
Loss for the period and total BAEBE RS EEELE
comprehensive loss for the period - (14,790) (14,790)
Issue of shares pursuant to the RIREAEITIRD
Reorganisation (3,000) - (3,000)
Issue of shares under initial public offering 1R 1& & /X AR 1TIGD 79,000 - 79,000
Share issue expenses BITROER (8,212) = (8,212)
At 31 March 2017 R201743 431 H 67,788 (14,790) 52,998

36. Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of Directors on 20 June 2017.

36. HLEIIFHRE

HBBMERON2017F6 A0 KEFS

BUAE R IR AE T3S
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THREE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
=FHERE

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3HA31ALFE

2015 2016 2017
HK$ 000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
RESULTS ES
Revenue e A 74,000 83,352 100,104
Profit before tax R B Al ) 15,232 21,951 3,509
Income tax expense FriS®if > (1,737) (3,463) (3,450)
Profit for the year and total KARHAE AEEER T
comprehensive income for the REEREBALE
year attributable to
owners of the Company 13,495 18,488 59
As at 31 March
ASHASB1IH
2015 2016 2017
HK$ 000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets BEE 68,612 84,112 170,623
Total liabilities FEN=RE (57,752) (65,364) (80,033)
Equity attributable to ViN/NETE ¥ =N Y ]
owners of the Company ARz 10,860 18,748 90,590
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